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Our Presence….! 

 

40 Branches across 6 States 

(5 branches) 

(11 branches) 

(3 branches) 

(8 branches) 

(4 branches) 

(9 branches) 
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Message from MD

 
 

Dear Shareholders, 

The start of FY 2021-22, similar to previous year, 

was affected by COVID-19 induced lockdowns 

as new waves of infection swept across the 

world. In India, the second wave proved far 

more lethal than the first wave that struck in Mar 

‘20. The pandemic had completely shaken the 

nation with unprecedented incidence of deaths, 

loss of jobs and the economic downturn had cast 

a bleak shadow over the community. The 

Reserve Bank of India was quick to act and 

announced measures under the “Resolution 

Framework 2.0” which allowed lenders to 

undertake a fresh round of restructuring of 

loans. This provided a major relief to the 

borrowers to tide the unprecedented crises. The 

vaccination program, which picked up pace 

from Q2 onwards, was a saviour as evidenced by 

the limited impact of the third wave of COVID-

19 (which peaked in February 2022) on life as 

well as livelihood. 

With the fear of pandemic subsiding as the year 

progressed. The company could weather the 

challenges posed to Business Operations in the 

backdrop of pandemic mainly on account of 

strong foundations of adequate capitalisation; 

sound ALM, Cloud-based integrated tech 

platform across functions and zero cash 

transactions since inception. We continued our 

focus to build 100% retail HL Book with key 

focus on LIG/EWS Customer segment and grow 

fresh disbursements in a calibrated manner 

making it more efficient and scalable. Q1 FY21-

22 disbursements remained muted owing to 

lockdowns and severe impact on life and 

livelihood. However, with mass vaccination 

drive that led to ease in lockdown restriction 

Loan disbursements gradually picked-up in H2 

with monthly disbursement run-rate of ₹20cr, 

FY21-22 ended with a total Gross AUM of ₹313cr 

vs ₹149cr for FY21 with Net AUM at ₹251cr at 

end of FY21-22 (a YoY growth of 102%) and total 

customer base of 4,000+ with 100% of our loan 

book in the retail segment and Nil exposure to 

wholesale funding. The asset quality remained 

stable with GNPA at 0.7% as of Mar-22. Focus on 

First time home buyers has demonstrated asset 

quality specially in backdrop of COVID 

pandemic.  

 

With an inherent ALM mis-match in the 

business model, we have ensured that the 

Company is adequately capitalised. In-line with 

the long-term plans, we completed the Series B 

Equity funding of ₹88cr in November 2021 

taking the net worth of the Company to ₹226cr. 

Post this, the Company commenced its plan to 

expand footprint in the existing states by 

increasing its network to 55 branches with 

majority of the new branches being opened in 

Southern Indian states of Karnataka, Tamil 

Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, and Telangana. By end 

of Mar-22 company has expanded branch 

network from 30 to 40 and 55 by end of Q1FY23. 

With this increased branch network, the 

company intend to enhance business capacity 

significantly in FY 23 which will lay foundation 

for beginning of sustainable growth journey for 

the company.   

 

The separate vertical of Collections since 

inception has helped to establish a robust 

collection process and regular customer connect 
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in these challenging times. Various relief 

schemes announced by the Reserve Bank of 

India, from moratorium to restructuring, have 

helped our borrowers sail through this COVID-

19 tsunami. Our collection efficiency in Mar ’22 

had reached 98% with Gross NPA at 0.7% and 

Net NPA at 0.4%. During the year we continued 

our efforts in strengthening our organisation’s 

processes, systems, manpower and structures 

for a sustainable growth.  

 

Our efficient operations supported by strong 

strategic foundation enabled us to maintained 

sustainable profitability in such challenging 

times. We ended the year with a PAT of ₹4.5cr vs 

₹3.2cr in the previous year.   

 

On the borrowing front in FY2021-22, we on-

boarded two banks – State Bank of India and 

RBL Bank Limited. In addition, we raised fresh 

credit line of ₹50cr from National Housing Bank 

under its refinance scheme. Funding from 

National Housing Bank and State Bank of India, 

apart from diversification in debt mix, has led to 

a sound ALM with longer tenure loans (7 years). 

The liquidity level remains robust supported by 

debt pipeline in place. Taking cue from the 

material event of Series B Equity funding, CARE 

Edge had upgraded its credit rating of the 

Company from BBB- ‘Stable’ to BBB- ‘Positive’ in 

January 2022. 

 

Technology has been a key element of our 

business model since inception and at the 

forefront of our growth strategy. Our tech-

assisted digital service delivery model 

supported by cloud-based infrastructure 

enabled us to demonstrate strong business 

continuity in our operations during the COVID-

19 induced lock-downs. During the year, we 

further enhanced our technology platform on 

the mobility front which improved the customer 

on-boarding and service capabilities. It will be 

our endeavour to constantly make our 

technology platform more robust, efficient and a 

catalyst in providing simple, convenient and 

relevant service delivery and a critical element 

for a sustainable growth journey.  

 

Looking ahead, FY22-23 will be the beginning of 

our sustainable growth journey. With the 

waning of the pandemic, the world is gradually 

picking up after the disruptions and the slack in 

the economy. There is a rebound in consumer 

demand and consumer confidence. However, 

the mounting inflationary pressures, rising 

commodity prices, geo-political unrest and 

lingering threat of another wave of COVID-19 

will lead to challenging external environment in 

near future. We are cautiously optimistic and 

our view is demand for housing loan will remain 

stable in FY23 with long-term growth potential 

of affordable housing to remain intact. In midst 

of post pandemic challenging environment, we 

see silver lining in rapid adoption of digital 

platform in our customer segment which were 

excluded from the benefit of digital 

infrastructure. This transformation will be game 

changer for financial services industry and 

specially for a company like ours who focus 

predominantly on low-income customer 

segment which are excluded from access to 

formal financial service.  We expect robust long-

term demand for housing in low-income 

customer segment with customers expected to 

fast forward home buying decisions as the 

economy normalizes. Collection discipline in 

our customer segment who predominantly are 

first home buyers have continued to 

demonstrate our business model to focus on first 

time home buyer from low-income segment. The 

Company is well poised for a sustainable growth 

journey supported by healthy liquidity position 

on account of adequate capitalisation and can 

optimally leverage the Balance Sheet in FY23. 

At the core of our success lies the commitment, 

grit, determination and persistence 

demonstrated by our employees towards 

delivering their best specially in back drop of 

challenging environment. I want to take a 

moment to express my heartfelt gratitude 

towards our investors, lending partners, service 

providers and other stakeholders for their 

continuous support, faith, and encouragement.  

 

 

.
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On a path towards sustainable growth!  

₹313cr / ₹251cr 
Gross AUM / Net AUM 

As we make further progress in our 
journey towards a sustainable 
growth path, we commit ourselves 
to become a more customer-centric 
and dynamic organisation  
providing unwavering  commitment 
of Simple, Convenient and Relevant 
service to our customers who have 
traditionally remained either 
unserved or underserved.  
 
We continue to focus on our growth 
strategy by leveraging our strengths 
and key business enablers such as 
our wide distribution network, 
robust collection process, strong 
credit processes and scalable digital 
capabilities which will help us 
achieve higher echelons of success, 
maintain superior customer service 
and generate sustainable value for 
our stakeholders. 

 

4,008 
Customers 
 

92% 
EWS/LIG Customers 
 

95% 
1st home buyers 
 

30% 
New to Credit Customers 
 

100% 
Retail Portfolio 
 

3,660 
Women Borrowers 
 

49% / 51% 
Salaried / Self Employed 
Customers 
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75%
63%

59%

46%

19%

25%

24%

21%

12%

15%

15%

14%

5%

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

RJ

AP & TS

TN

KA

MH

34%

58%

8%

EWS LIG MIG

 

 

 

FY22 Quarterly Gross Disbursals Customer mix 

 

₹10

₹44

₹58
₹63

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

State wise loan book mix Product mix 

Portfolio Growth and Mix 
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Our Board 

  

  

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar 
Independent Director 

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar has over 30 years’ experience in Business and 
Human Resource with diverse global companies such as British Petroleum, 
Castrol and Standard Chartered Bank.  She is a Post Graduate in Personnel 
Management & Industrial Relations from XLRI and has attended strategic 
Human Resources programmes at Harvard and by Cornell.  She is a 
Certified Coach (Neuro-leadership Group), SHL Certified Assessment 
Centre Specialist and Certified Facilitator & SATE Practitioner from IBM 
Skillbase.  

Himanshu Joshi  
Independent Director 

Mr. Himanshu Joshi has over 4 decades of hands-on banking experience 
across India and retired as the Executive Director for Oriental bank of 
Commerce (now Punjab National Bank (PNB)) in 2018. He served as the 
General Manager of PNB, he headed the treasury department of the Bank 
and also headed MP and Chhattisgarh States as part of his GM tenure with 
PNB. He was also appointed as the Chief Compliance Officer of PNB, 
conceived the idea to strengthen compliance culture of bank and 
spearheaded the job of creation of robust compliance infrastructure. He 
holds a graduate degree in Commerce and is a Certified Associate at the 
Indian Institute of Banking and Finance (CAIIB). 

Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat 

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat is the MD & CEO of Altum Credo. He is one of the 
founders of the company and has more than 25+ years of experience in 
financial services specialising in retail lending and instrumental in scaling 
businesses pan-India. In his earlier stint, he was the Business Head for 
Suryoday Small Finance Bank and has held leadership positions with DCB 
Bank, Chola Group and HDFC bank. 

Mr. Ashish Tewari 

Non-Executive Promotor Director 

Mr. Ashish Tewari is a Non-Executive Promoter Director and one of the 
founders of the Company. A Successful entrepreneur, he co-founded Fusion 
Micro Finance in the year 2009 and served as Director – COO building a 
successful pan-India business. He has been previously associated with DCB 
Bank, GE Capital and ICICI Bank. He has over 25+ years of experience in 
financial services. He has founded Tweedle Technologies, a solution 
providing Employee Engagement Solutions to the organizations to fight 
climate change. 
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Ms. Sushma Kaushik 
Non-Executive Nominee Director 

Ms. Sushma Kaushik is a Nominee Director for Aavishkaar Bharat Fund- 
our PE Investor. She brings with her over 19 years of diverse experience in 
the field of early-stage investing, small business incubation and consulting 
across sectors. She has been an active representative on the Boards of several 
early-growth stage companies. She started off with an entrepreneurial 
venture in engineering design services and moved on to roles in 
investments. She is an alumnus of Harvard Business School, Indian School 
of Business and an engineering graduate. 

Our Board 
 

  

 

  

Mr. Avishek Addy 

Non-Executive Additional Director 

Avishek is a member of the core investment team of Amicus Capital with a 
focus on investment in the financial services sector. He has over 15 years of 
experience of which 10 years have been in private equity and buy-side 
advisory. Prior to joining Amicus Capital in 2016, he has worked across 
multiple organizations including Faering Capital, Ernst & Young, and Oil 
and Natural Gas Corporation Limited. He has strong academic credentials 
with a post-graduate degree in management from the Indian Institute of 
Management (Ahmedabad), a Rank Holder in CA (Final) and CA 

(Foundation) exams. 

Mr. Subit Saurav 

Non-Executive Nominee Director 

Mr. Subit Saurav is an Associate Director at Aavishkaar and brings more 
than 12 years of experience in early-stage investment, finance and portfolio 
management. He has worked closely with multiple inclusive businesses and 
prior to joining Aavishkaar, he worked with FMR Rural Channels and 
Services. Subit has completed a strategic leadership program at the 
prestigious Harvard Business School, is an engineering graduate from IIT 
Guwahati and has an MBA from the Indian Institute of Management, 
Calcutta.  

Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman 
Board Observer 

Mr. Mahesh is a co-founder & serves as Partner at Amicus Capital India. 
Prior to co-founding Amicus Capital, Mahesh was a Managing Director in 
the Asia Growth Capital team of The Carlyle Group based in Mumbai. 
During his ten plus years at Carlyle, Mahesh led investments across sectors 
such as technology, financial services and consumer. Before joining Carlyle, 
Mahesh worked with EY and Arthur Anderson. Mahesh received his 
bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from Bangalore University. He is a 
Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant. 
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Leadership Team 

  Mr. Sanjay Tiwari 
Founding Member and Chief Financial Officer  

Sanjay is the founding member along with our MD & CEO, Mr. 
Vikrant Bhagwat. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant with over 20 
years of experience in areas of corporate finance, business planning & 
strategy, treasury management & regulatory compliance. A passionate 
professional proficient in early-stage business roll-out from the 
inception stage including an entrepreneurial start-up stint. Prior to 
Altum Credo he was CFO of Suryoday Micro Finance and played a 
key role in equity & debt fund raise and was instrumental in 
formulation of the business strategy for small finance bank project. He 
began his professional career with ABN Amro Bank.  

Vivek Meharwal 
Chief Business Officer  

A proactive leader and mortgage specialist with over 20 years of rich 
experience spread across Affordable Home Loans, Education Infra 
loan (EIL), Business Loans, Construction Finance, Structured Finance, 
Portfolio Management and Strategic planning. Vivek has also been 
instrumental in setting up the direct and indirect business revenue 
model with profitable responsibilities. At Avanse, he was part of the 
core founding team and responsible for setting up the business 
operations while at Religare Home Loans he was in charge for setting 
up the entire Sales, Distribution and Collection model pan-India. He 
has previously worked with GE and ICICI Home Finance.  

Srinivasan G 
Chief Credit & Risk Officer 

Srini (as he is fondly known) has over 20 years’ experience in housing 
finance with expertise in areas of Credit Policy Formulation & 
Underwriting, Risk Management, Regulatory Compliance, Business 
Operations and Data Analytics. He had long professional stint with 
Tata Capital Housing Finance and was instrumental in setting up the 
Affordable & Rural Housing vertical and managing the business pan-
India. At Centrum Housing Finance he was part of the founding team; 
setting-up business operations, policy framework & roll-out of core IT 
projects. He was SVP – Credit and Policy at Motilal Oswal Home 
Loans and started his professional career with Deutsche Postbank 
Home Finance. 
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Indian Economy Overview 

For the past two years the entire world has been 

grappling to reduce the impact of COVID-19 

pandemic- The slowdown in the incidence of the 

pandemic, aggressive vaccination programme, 

supportive macroeconomic policies and favorable 

financial conditions all over the globe have 

catalyzed resumption of work and economic 

revival. India started seeing sustained economic 

revival in Q3 FY20-21 and FY21-22 was a 

turnaround year. The Indian economy reported a 

strong recovery in FY21-22 with its GDP 

rebounding from a de-growth of 6.6% in FY20-21 

to a growth of 8.7% in FY21-22 as per the data 

released by the Government. 

Beginning of FY22-23 has thrown its own new 

challenges for the economy. The Russia-Ukraine 

conflict has disrupted global supply chain which 

has led to increase in prices of essential goods like 

food items and fuel the effect of which is also 

apparent in the Indian economy. India’s retail 

inflation, measured by the Consumer Price Index 

(CPI), rose to a 16 months’ high of 6.95% in the 

month of March 2022 with further rise in April 2022 

to 7.95%, thereby breaching the RBI’s inflation 

tolerance levels. This led to RBI reducing liquidity 

in the market by raising benchmark interest rates 

by 90 basis points in May-Jun ‘22 and increasing 

CRR for banks thereby squeezing out excess 

liquidity of approximately INR 87,000 Crores from 

the economy.  

Certain actions have been taken by the government 

to tame food and WPI inflation through 

introduction of import and export controls/duties 

on various items. Recent reduction of excise duty 

on fuel has slashed the fuel prices and provided 

relief to the consumers.  

The Indian economy is projected to grow by 8% in 

FY22-23, buoyed by tailwinds of consistent 

agricultural performance, flattening of the COVID-

19 infection curve, increase in government 

spending, favorable reforms and an efficient 

rollout of the vaccine leading to a revival in 

economic activity. 

 

 

Housing Finance Industry Overview 

The Indian housing finance sector recovered at a 

fast pace in FY21-22 witnessing robust demand. A 

rise in economic activities, pent-up demand and 

reduction in the home loan interest rates, coupled 

with the organic demand for housing, has resulted 

in optimistic projections for the Indian housing 

finance sector post the pandemic. The demand was 

also fuelled by the policy emphasis on low cost and 

affordable housing. As a result, the segment saw 

good traction and is expected to provide a much-

needed impetus to the overall industry. 

Q1 FY21-22 witnessed moderate growth among 

affordable housing finance company (“AHFC”) 

sector. Growth picked up again in Q2 and Q3 with 

disbursements attaining peak levels in Q4. AHFCs 

have reported a 14% YoY growth in Loan 

Disbursals. According to ICRA report, Loans for 

affordable housing are expected to grow at a 

healthy level of 17-20% in FY22-23. However, 

monitoring of asset quality shall be a key factor in 

achieving sustainable growth. As anticipated, 

Gross NPA in AHFC sector in FY21-22 have gone 

up by around 70 bps due to current economic 

scenario and expected to be around 3% for FY22-

23. The GNPAs increased significantly in Q1 FY21-

22 followed by a recovery in Q2 FY 21-22. 

However, tighter regulations by RBI led to an 

increase in the GNPAs by 50-100 bps for the 

industry. While restructuring levels have risen, 

NBFCs and HFCs have built strong provisioning 

buffers, which should provide a crucial offset in the 

event of fresh slippages in the restructured 

accounts. With the introduction of new RBI NPA 

recognition norm, asset quality indicators are 

estimated to remain elevated in the near term, 

nevertheless it is expected to revive almost to the 

pre-Covid level in FY22-23. 

Altum Credo: Overview 

Altum Credo, right from inception, has focused on 

providing home loans to first time home buyers 

belonging to unserved and underserved customer 

segments viz. Low Income Group (LIG) and 

Economically Weaker Section (EWS). 

Geographical focus being Tier II and Tier III towns 

with vibrant economic activity. More than 90% of 
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customers belong to LIG and EWS income 

segments.  

Altum Credo’s customer base consists of a healthy 

mix of salaried customers (both formal and 

informal segments) and self-employed proprietors 

of small and medium enterprises. These customers 

aspire to own a home but most have little or no 

access to affordable credit from formal channels in 

spite of having stable source of earnings with 

steady cash flows. This arises from challenges in 

conventional underwriting faced by large 

institutional lenders like banks and larger NBFCs 

owing to lack of adequate formal income 

documents and low loan ticket size. Non-

institutional (other than Banks and Large NBFCs) 

sources typically do not meet their funding 

requirements or provide very short tenure finance 

making EMI unaffordable. The Company aims to 

bridge this gap by providing long term finance 

(making EMI affordable) with unwavering service 

commitment of being Simple, Convenient and 

Relevant. It provides loans to families in the new to 

credit, self-employed, cash salaried category where 

formal income proofs, Credit Bureaus reports are 

not easily available, and the repayment capacity of 

such households are appraised based on their cash 

flows and Internal risk-based pricing. 

Most of Altum Credo’s customers are constructing 

a house on their own land or buying their small 

first home. In FY2021-22, the average ticket size of 

the home loan portfolio is at ₹8.4 lakhs with an 

average tenure of 15 years. With Loan to Value 

ratio at around 47%, the average value of the 

properties funded is around ₹15-₹25 lakhs.  

Business Presence 

Altum Credo currently operates in six states – 

Maharashtra, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, Rajasthan, 

Telangana and Andhra Pradesh. Post the Series B 

Equity Funding in November ’21; we expanded 

our operations in the existing states taking the 

branch count from 30 branches to 40 branches as of 

Mar 31, 2022. The majority of new branches are in 

the states of Telangana, Andhra Pradesh and 

Rajasthan. With expansion in these states, we have 

diversified our loan book and have built up a 

strong presence outside the home state of 

Maharashtra whose share in the total AUM stands 

at 46% (as on March 31, 2022) – the rest being fairly 

diversified across the other states with a strong 

presence in South India.  

Portfolio Performance 

Altum Credo has registered a strong loan book 

growth of 102% in FY21-22 with AUM crossing the 

milestone of ₹250cr. In line with industry trend, the 

disbursements picked up pace and peaked in Q4 

with record level gross disbursements of ₹67cr in a 

single quarter. We have total Gross AUM of ₹313cr 

vs ₹149cr for FY21. 

Considering financial stress caused by pandemic to 

our customer segment, management has 

conservatively provided for additional 

contingency provisioning – this has greatly helped 

in cushioning the adverse impact may cause by 

pandemic event. Taking into account customers 

predominantly belonging to EWS/LIG segment; 

Company, as part of prudent accounting policy, 

has provided provisioning of 0.40% (as opposed to 

the RBI norm of 0.25%) on the standard home loan 

assets beginning from current financial year. FY22 

Gross NPAs (as % of AUM) were at 0.67% vs 0.72% 

for FY21. The total NPAs as on March 31, 2022 were 

₹1.67cr. The Company carries a provision of 

₹0.76cr. In addition, as of March 31, 2022, the 

COVID-19 contingency overlay provision stands at 

₹2.02cr. As the effect of pandemic on the economy 

has diminished over time, we have witnessed 

accelerating pace of recovery in the overdue 

accounts wherein the priority has been to arrest the 

roll-forward to next overdue bucket and then roll-

back over a period of time. 

During FY20-21 and FY21-22, due to pandemic 

related challenges and impact on cash flows of the 

customers, borrowers faced difficulties in paying 

their dues on time especially during initial part of 

the year. However, proactive measures from RBI 

by announcing moratorium facility offered some 

breather to these customers and helped them to 

regularize their loan account without impacting 

their credit history. Further, RBI had also allowed 

restructuring under “Resolution Framework 1.0” 

and “Resolution Framework 2.0” where borrowers 

who had difficulties in paying their dues on time. 

For such customers RBI had directed to offer 

restructuring wherein the customers were 

provided EMI moratorium. Total 115 loan accounts 

amounting to ₹8.09cr (3% of total Loan book) have 

been restructured. – These were granted EMI 

moratorium ranging up to 15 months till Mar’22. 

Overall RP collection for Mar ’22 was at 72% with 

fast recovery being witnessed in these accounts.  

The stable asset quality of the Company 

reemphasizes the robust systems and processes in 
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originating and underwriting of loan proposals 

supported by robust collections and legal process. 

Collection efficiency is stable at 98.5% pan-India as 

on Mar’22 which is near to pre-Covid levels. 

During the year, RBI had allowed HFCs with asset 

base of more than ₹100cr to take recourse and 

initiate recovery of overdue loans under the 

SARFAESI, Act. The Company has set up a robust 

legal team action against delinquent customers via 

SARFAESI, and Section 138 of the Negotiable 

Instruments’ Act.  

Funding 

In business model of any HFC there is an inherent 

ALM mismatch. To tackle this, since inception 

Altum Credo’s mitigation strategy has been to lay 

a strong and sustainable capital foundation. The 

fundamental premise of business plan has been to 

build sizable loan assets predominantly funded by 

equity capital and ringfencing leverage below 3x 

during initial 5 years of business operation. In 

November ’21, we completed Series B Equity 

funding of ₹88cr and ended FY21-22 with a strong 

capital base of ₹226cr with a leverage of 0.49x. Such 

adequate capitalisation has undoubtedly laid a 

strong foundation for future growth. Fresh round 

of capital infusion does signify investor’s 

confidence in the growth potential of Altum Credo 

and HFC industry as a whole. With adequate 

backing of equity, we can continue on growth 

trajectory ensuring affordability of EMIs to the 

lower income segment and navigate through 

challenging economic environment effectively.  

On the debt fund raise , new term loan 

relationships with banks viz. State Bank of India 

and RBL Bank availed and continued support from 

NHB with additional refinance were obtained. 

Altum Credo understands that it is in the business 

of long-term funding which are in the range of 10-

15 years. With this in the background, borrowing 

policy has always been prudent to secure long term 

funding for minimum tenure of 5 years to mitigate 

the inherent asset liability mismatch in short to 

medium term buckets. Funding from National 

Housing Bank and State Bank of India, apart from 

diversification in debt mix, has led to a strong 

foundation for sound ALM with longer tenure 

loans (7 years). As part of the prudent fund 

management, we ringfence available funds for the 

committed undisbursed portion before allocation 

to new business while maintaining sufficient 

margin of safety to mitigate any unforeseen 

financial stress. Facilities such as Cash Credit 

facility and OD facilities have ensured availability 

of short-term funding lines.  

 

Credit Rating 

During the FY21-22, Altum Credo`s credit rating 

has been reaffirmed investment grade credit rating 

of BBB- by CARE Edge with outlook changed from 

Stable to Positive. 

Regulatory Changes  

NHB had tightened the capital adequacy norms for 

HFC and the minimum capital adequacy ratio was 

prescribed at 15% by March 2022. Altum Credo 

capital adequacy ratio stands at 139% well above 

the minimum requirement.  

Asset classification guidelines have been revised 

by RBI – loan accounts can be upgraded to 

‘standard’ from NPA only if all the arrears of 

interest and principal are paid by the borrower. 

RBI has extended the applicability of these 

timelines to September 30, 2022.  

RBI revises regulatory framework for Housing 

Finance Companies: In Oct ’20, RBI had prescribed 

a glide path to achieve the Principal Business 

Criteria whereby HFCs should constitute at least 

50% of total assets towards housing finance and 

40% of total assets towards housing finance for 

individuals by Mar ’22; increasing this requirement 

to 60% and 50% by Mar ’24. It also prescribed HFCs 

to have a minimum net owned fund of ₹20cr by 

Mar ’23. 

The company is in compliance with stated recent 

key regulatory changes w.r.t principal business 

criteria and net owned funds, since its strategy has 

been focused on building up retail housing loan 

book predominantly funded by equity capital.     

Technology and Digitisation 

Altum Credo, in line with its goal of building 

digitally assisted business delivery model, has 

given a huge thrust to technology implementation. 

It has endeavoured to build an efficient digitally 

oriented service delivery model to improve 

productivity and also provide enriched end-

customer experience with cloud-based technology 

being adopted across functions. These technology 

platforms also ensure a system driven control 



 

  
Page 17 Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited | Annual Report 2021-22 

process and compliance. Integrated lifecycle of 

customer, workflow-based system – with Mobility, 

Loan Origination, Loan Management and 

Accounting & MIS Modules has enhanced the 

service delivery across channels assisted by Mobile 

App and Centralized Call Centre. 

The cloud-based tech platforms ensured smooth 

conduct of business operations when lockdown 

restrictions were in place across the country and 

work-from-home became the norm for most 

corporate houses. 

Altum Credo has emphasized on digital payments 

with 100% cashless transactions. 95% of the 

collection is done through NPCI’s NACH facility. 

In addition, it provides multiple payment options 

to its customers through its online payment system 

launched with payment gateways such as 

Razorpay as well as through BHIM and 

GooglePay. The Company as part of its technology 

roadmap lined up multiple digital initiatives for 

FY22-23 thereby enhancing the overall platform for 

multiple third-party integrations. This is expected 

to further improve customer on-boarding 

experience, effective collection management, 

customer service and deployment of various 

referral schemes.  

Human Resource 

At Altum Credo, lot of importance is placed on the 

human capital, be it recruitment of quality staff, 

induction, training and overall growth of 

employees. The Company strongly believes that its 

competitive advantage comes from its people. The 

Company is devoted to attracting and maintaining 

talent, which is critical to attaining its objectives. It 

was also granted a ‘Great Place to Work’ 

certification for its efforts to build a performance-

driven and people-centric organisation. The 

Company is committed to attracting the best talent 

and providing them with equitable opportunities 

for professional progress by catering to their 

aptitude, goals, and aspirations.  

During the year under review, the regional 

leadership across the states has been strengthened. 

In addition, we created a Business HR function for 

recruitment, retention and performance 

management of the Sales team. To enhance the 

field level staff retention, the Company has 

constantly focused on induction and on-job 

training to enable them to have a better 

understanding of the company, its culture and 

business and align their performance in line with 

organization goals. To achieve this the Company 

onboarded a lead for Learning & Development 

function.  

The Company strives to provide equitable work 

opportunities for all its employees and promote 

workplace diversity while taking appropriate 

actions to improve employee satisfaction and 

engagement. The total number of employees 

increased from 225 in the previous year to 372 as 

on March 31, 2022. While the percentage of female 

employees in non-field roles increased from 13% in 

FY20-21 to 21% in FY21-22. 

Internal Controls Systems 

Altum Credo has an internal control system, 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity 

of its operations. The system of internal controls is 

designed to provide a high degree of assurance 

regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of 

operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, 

the reliability of financial controls and compliance 

with applicable laws and regulations. The 

integrated loan origination, loan management, 

accounting and reporting systems in the software 

that has been implemented has adequate checks 

and balance in place to ensure that the transactions 

are recorded, authorised and reported correctly. 

Reputed external firm has conducted internal audit 

for FY21-22 and this has helped in our constant 

endeavour to improved our policies and processes.  

Financial Performance 

This was consecutive third year when Altum 

Credo had achieved profitability post 

commencement of business. Key elements of 

Financial Results are as follows: 

• Income for the FY 2021-22 grew by 79% as 

compared to the previous year. 

• Altum Credo ended FY 2021-22 with a 

profit after tax of ₹4.6cr vs ₹3.2cr in the 

previous year.  

• Loan outstanding for the year ending 

2021-22 grew by 102% compared to 

previous year. 

• Debt to Equity ratio at 0.49x. 

• Customer base increased to 4,008 

customers from 2,062 in previous year  
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Outlook of the Company 

Demand for affordable housing expected to stay 

healthy, mainly attributed by shortage in urban 

housing, young demographic profile, shift towards 

nuclear families and rapid urbanisation. Limited 

supply in low cost and affordable housing 

segments, largely being catered to by government 

undertakings or smaller and unorganised 

developers, has resulted in an acute shortage of 

housing in this segment. Various fiscal incentives 

to homebuyers targeted towards the affordable 

housing segment are expected to further augment 

demand and the long-term story of affordable 

housing remains intact in spite of last few difficult 

years. Low mortgage penetration, increased early-

stage home ownership and growing aspirations of 

the low-income group segment have added to the 

tremendous opportunities in this sector.  

As per recent CRISIL report, home loans will be the 

fastest-growing segment, as lenders continue to be 

selective in the non-housing segment (comprising 

wholesale and LAP loans). After relatively low 

growth in recent years, the home loan segment is 

expected to clock 12-14% CAGR over fiscals 2022 

and 2023. This will be driven by improving sales, 

better affordability, and a preference for home 

ownership and larger homes.  

With capacity building of its branch network in H2 

FY22 Altum Credo has picked up business 

momentum in FY22 and has all building blocks in 

place for sustainable business growth in FY23. 

Sound business principles and best practices, 

comprehensive adoption of digital platform has 

enabled cost-effective service and scalability to 

service low-income group segment which largely 

remained excluded from long term affordable 

finance.    

Altum Credo’s strength lies in its business 

operations fully operational on cloud based 

integrated digital platform, strong capital base, 

minimal leverage and positive cumulative ALM in 

all time buckets has strengthened its balance sheet 

to weather the current crises and be ready for 

sustainable growth. Although there are certain 

headwinds in the form of higher inflation and 

rising interest rates;with gradual improvement in 

economic conditions, FY23 outlook appears 

positive and the Company well-equipped to 

sustain its growth momentum.   

 

Cautionary Statement 

Statements made in the Management Discussion & 

Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 

projections, estimates, expectations may be 

“Forward-looking statements” within the meaning 

of applicable laws & regulations. Actual results 

could differ from those expressed or implied. 

Important factors that could make a difference to 

the Company’s operations include economic 

conditions affecting demand supply and price 

conditions in the markets in which the Company 

operates, changes in the government regulations, 

tax laws & other statutes and other incidental 

factors.
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Board’s Report 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixth Annual report together with the audited accounts of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

1. Financial Highlights                     (₹ in lakhs) 

 Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Income from Operations 3,321.0 1,736.6 

Other income 322.0 296.4 

Total Income 3,643.1 2,033.0 

Less: Expenditure including depreciation 3,036.2 1,692.1 

Profit before taxation 606.8 340.9 

Profit after taxation 446.9 323.0 

Asset under management 25,094.1 12,384.5 

 

2. Information on the state of affairs and operations of the Company 
During the year under report the Company earned a total income of ₹3,643.1 lakhs as compared to ₹2,033.0 

lakhs during previous year. The Company has reported profit to the tune of ₹446.9 lakhs. 

 

For the year under report the net worth stands at ₹ 22,574.8 lakhs. 

 

The Company’s thrust on technology led and assisted operations across functions played key role in business 

operation continuity during lockdown period. The Directors of the Company are putting best efforts to 

mitigate the challenges arising on account of COVID-19 pandemic. As the pandemic is easing out, we are 

cautiously optimist on the beginning of the sustainable growth journey of the Company for the F.Y 23 

 

3. Change in Nature of Business 
There is no change in the business of Company. 

 

4. Details of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company as on March 31, 2022. 

 

5. Transfer to Reserves 

As per Section 29C (i) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% 

of its net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. Accordingly, your Company has 

transferred ₹89.37 lakhs (previous year ₹64.59 lakhs) to special reserve in accordance with Section 29C(i) of 

National Housing Bank Act, 1987 read along with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.  

 

6. Dividend 
Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

7. Internal Financial Control 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During 

the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was 

observed. 

 

8. Material Changes and Commitments 
There are no material changes and commitments between March 31, 2022 and the date of this report having 

an adverse bearing on the financial position of the Company. 
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9. Regulatory Guidelines  
Altum Credo continues to comply with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting guidelines, 
prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy, concentration of 
credit, credit rating, KYC guidelines and AML standards and Fair Practices Code. Capital Adequacy ratio of 
Altum Credo stood at 139.04% as against the minimum statutory requirement of 15%. 
 

10. Statutory Auditors 
During the year under review, RBI issued Circular No. 2021-22/25 dated April 27, 2021 stating new guidelines 
for appointment of Statutory Auditors for certain categories of NBFCs, HFCs, Primary Commercial Banks and 
Co-operative Banks stipulating various requirements relating to appointment/re-appointment of auditors 
including in respect of tenure of auditors, mandatory rotation and cool-off periods etc. Thus, due to the 
conditions stipulated in the said circular, M/s B S R & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration no. 
101248W/W – 100022) resigned from the office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company w.e.f August 27, 
2021. 
 
The Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on September 03, 2021, in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 appointed M/s M.P Chitale & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Pune (FRN No. 101851W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in casual vacancy to hold 
office up to the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
 
The Board in their meeting held on June 10, 2022 has recommended the re-appointment of M/s M.P Chitale & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, Pune, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years to hold 
office from the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 11th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027.   
 
Further, the Company has received confirmation from M/s M.P Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Pune, 
regarding their consent and eligibility for reappointment under Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for re-appointment as Auditors of the Company for a 
period of five consecutive years from the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Board 
recommends their appointment as the Statutory Auditors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 
 

11. Auditor’s Report 
The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022 forms part of this Annual Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditors in their Report. 
 
Mr. Sanat Chitale, Partner, M/s. M.P Chitale & Co. has signed the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company. 
 

12. Secretarial Audit 
The Borrowings of the Company from Banks/FIs during the year under review exceeded ₹100 crores and thus 
in compliance with the provision of section 204 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company in its Board meeting 
held on March 11, 2022 appointed Ms. Priya Vishwanathan, Practicing Company Secretary, Mumbai as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for conducting the Secretarial Audit the F.Y 2021-22. The said Secretarial 
Audit Report enclosed as Annexure-C to this Board Report does not contain any qualifications or reservations 
by the Secretarial Auditor.  

 
13. Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures 
Disclosures related to Particulars required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 
Company, being a private limited company.  
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14. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
During the year under review, there were changes in the composition of the Board as mentioned below: 
 

➢ Mr. Ghanasham Kulkarni and Mr. Ganesh Rao tendered their resignations and ceased from the 
Directorship of the Company w.e.f. September 14, 2021 and December 15, 2021 respectively. 
 

➢ The Board appointed Mr. Avishek Addy as an additional Non-Executive Director w.e.f. November 
18, 2021 and Mr. Himanshu Joshi as an Independent Director w.e.f. December 15, 2021 till the 
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 
The Board has recommended to the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting to confirm the 
appointments of Mr. Avishek Addy as a Non-Executive Director and Mr. Himanshu Joshi as an Independent 
Director for a period of five consecutive years w.e.f. December 15, 2021 up to December 14, 2026. 
  
Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under The Housing Finance Companies – 
Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, the Company has received the ‘Fit and 
Proper’ declarations from Directors along with other Disclosures including Independency Declarations. 
Further, the Company has also obtained signed Deed of Covenants from the newly appointed Directors. 
 
Thus, as on March 31, 2022, the Board of your Company consists of the following Directors: 
 

1. Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat  – Managing Director & CEO 
2. Mr. Himanshu Joshi  – Independent Director 
3. Mrs. Matangi Gowrishankar – Independent Director 
4. Mr. Ashish Tewari  – Promoter Non-Executive Director 
5. Mrs. Sushma Kaushik  – Non-Executive Nominee Director 
6. Mr. Subit Saurav  – Non-Executive Nominee Director 
7. Mr. Avishek Addy  – Additional Director 

 
Further during the year, Ms. Avanti Gulavani resigned from the office of Company Secretary and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. March 11, 2022 and Ms. Vrishti Kaushik was appointed as the 
Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. March 11, 2022. 
 

15. Declaration from Independent Director 
The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors to the effect that they meet the 
criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the 
notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Independent Directors have included their name 
in the data bank maintained for the purpose. Also, as per provisions of Clause VII of Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, separate meeting of Independent Directors held once during the year under review where 
non independent directors and other members of management did not take part. 
 

16. Share Capital 

a) Authorised Share Capital 
During the Financial Year under review, the Company at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 
25, 2021 increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 63,35,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty-Three Crores Thirty-Five 
Lakhs only) to Rs. 1,06,35,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Six Crores Thirty-Five Lakhs only). 
 
The Authorised share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 stands at Rs.1,06,35,00,000/- divided into: 
 

(i) 6,25,98,927 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 6,25,98,9270/-, 
(ii) 2,07,51,073 Series A Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

aggregating to Rs. 20,75,10,730/-, and 
(iii) 2,30,00,000 Series B Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

aggregating to Rs. 23,00,00,000/-. 
 

b) Issued and paid-up share capital 
i) Equity Shares  
The Issued and Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company increased from Rs. 41,08,15,560/- to Rs. 
44,17,33,060/- as at March 31, 2022 and stands divided into 4,41,73,306 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 



 

  
Page 22 Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited | Annual Report 2021-22 

ii) Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 

The issued and paid-up preference share capital of the Company increased from Rs. 14,08,44,070/- to Rs. 
36,16,24,070/- as at March 31, 2022 and stands divided into Series A 1,40,84,407 and Series B 2,20,78,000 
preference shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
 

17. Refinance from National Housing Bank (NHB) 
During the Financial Year under review, NHB sanctioned Rs. 20 crores under NHB’s refinance scheme and 
Rs. 10 crores under NHB’s Special Refinance Facility 2021 to the Company. 

 
18. Alteration of Memorandum of Association  
During the Financial Year under review, the Company at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 
25, 2021 increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 63,35,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty-Three Crores Thirty-Five 
Lakhs only) to Rs. 1,06,35,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Six Crores Thirty-Five Lakhs only) and thus altered 
its Memorandum of Association. 
 

19. Credit Rating  
CARE has upgraded the rating to “CARE BBB - ; Positive (Triple B Minus; Outlook Positive) from earlier 
“CARE BBB - ; Stable (Triple B Minus; Outlook Stable) to the Long Term Bank Facilities of the Company. The 
outlook was indicated as “Positve”.  

 
20. Number of Board Meetings held 
A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. Adequate notice is given to all 
Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting 
 
During the year under review 8 (Eight) Board Meetings were convened and held i.e. on (i) June 14, 2021, (ii) 
September 02, 2021, (iii) September 14, 2021, (iv) October 23, 2021, (v) November 10, 2021, (vi) November 18, 
2021, (vii) December 15, 2021 and (viii) March 11, 2022.  
 
The requisite quorum was present at the respective meetings of the Board. The attendance of the Directors at 
the Board Meetings is as under: 
 

 
# Name of Directors Designation/ Category 

No. of Meetings 
for which entitled 

to Attend 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat                                                                                                                                                                       Managing Director/CEO 8 7 

2 Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar Independent Director 8 8 

3 Mr. Himanshu Joshi# Independent Director 1 1 

4 Mr. Ashish Tewari Director  8 8 

5 Mr. Subit Saurav Nominee Director 8 8 

6 Ms. Sushma Kaushik Nominee Director 8 8 

7 Mr. Avishek Addy@ Non-Executive Director 2 2 

8 Mr. Ghanshyam Kulkarni* Independent Director 2 0 

9 Mr. Ganesh Rao$ Director 7 7 

#  Mr. Himanshu Joshi has been appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. December 15, 
2021. 
@ Mr. Avishek Addy has been appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. November 18, 2021. 
*  Mr. Ghanshyam Kulkarni ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. September 14, 2021. 
$ Mr. Ganesh Rao ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. December 15, 2021. 
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21. Board Committees  
The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific issues and ensure 
expedient resolution of diverse matters. Details of various committees of the Board have been mentioned 
below: 
 
a) Audit Committee: 
Pursuant to the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Para 3(i) of the Housing Finance Companies -
Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 and para no. 50 of Master Direction – Non-
Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Company has 
constituted the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of the Board met 5 (Five) times during the year on 
(i) June 14, 2021, (ii) September 02, 2021, (iii) September 14, 2021, (iv) December 15, 2021 and (v) March 11, 
2022. respectively. The requisite quorum was present at the respective meetings of the Committee.  

 
The Audit Committee presently consists of the following members: 

1. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar         - Chairman 
2. Mr. Himanshu Joshi                     - Member 
3. Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat                   - Member  
4. Mr. Subit Saurav                          - Member 
5. Mr. Avishek Addy                       - Member 

* Mr. Ghanasham Kulkarni ceased to be a member of the committee w.e.f. September 14, 2021. 
* Mr. Ganesh Rao ceased to be a member of the committee w.e.f. December 15, 2021. 
* Mr. Avishek Addy appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. November 18, 2021. 
* Mr. Himanshu Joshi appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. December 15, 2021. 

 

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Para 3(i) of the Housing Finance Companies -
Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 and para no. 50 of Master Direction – Non-
Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Company has 
constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Board met 4 (Four) times during the year on (i) June 14, 2021, (ii) November 18, 2021,(iii) December 15, 
2021 and (iv) March 11, 2022. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at present consists of the following members: 

1. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar  - Chairman 
2. Mr. Himanshu Joshi   - Member 
3. Mr. Ashish Tewari   - Member  
4. Mr. Sushma Kaushik   - Member 
5. Mr. Avishek Addy   - Member 

* Mr. Ghanasham Kulkarni ceased to be a member of the committee w.e.f. September 14, 2021 
* Mr. Avishek Addy appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. November 18, 2021. 
* Mr. Himanshu Joshi appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. December 15, 2021. 
 

c) Resourcing Committee 
Pursuant to the Section 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 Company has constituted the Resourcing 
Committee. The Resourcing Committee of the Board met 5 (Five) times during the year on (i) June 07, 2021, 
(ii) July 22, 2021, (iii) September 25, 2021, (iv) October 20, 2021 and (v) February 17, 2022.  
 
The Resourcing Committee at present consists of the following members: 

1. Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat                  - Chairman 
2. Ms. Sushma Kaushik                  - Member  
3. Mr. Avishek Addy                      - Member  

* Mr. Ganesh Rao ceased to be a member of the committee w.e.f. December 15, 2021. 
* Mr. Avishek Addy appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. November 18, 2021. 
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d) Other Committees 

The Company has constituted various Committees as per the requirement under Housing Finance Companies 
(NHB) Circulars/Directions issued from time to time. These Committees meet time to time as per 
requirement, minimum number of meeting or prescribed frequency as per applicable laws or NHB Directions 
/ Guidelines. The list of the Committees and their members as on March 31, 2022 as follows: 
 

# Name of the Committee Name of the Member 

1. Risk Management Committee 1. Ms. Sushma Kaushik  
2. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar 
3. Mr. Himanshu Joshi 
4. Mr. Avishek Addy 

2. Asset Liability Management Committee 
(ALCO)  
 

1. Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat 
2. Mr. Sanjay Tiwari 
3. Mr. Vivek Jain 
4. Mr. Vivek Meharwal 
5. Mr. G. Srinivasan 

3. Anti- Money Laundering and Know your 
Customer Policy 
 

1. Mr. Sanjay Tiwari 
2. Mr. G. Srinivasan  
3. Mr. Rahul Deshmukh 
4. Ms.Vrishti Kaushik 

4. Customer Service and Grievance Redressal  
 

1. Mr. Sanjay Tiwari 
2. Mr. G. Srinivasan 
3. Mr. Vivek Meharwal  
4. Ms. Vrishti Kaushik 

5. Internal Compliant Committee  
(Under the POSH Act) 
 
 

1. Ms. Aditi Talwalkar 
2. Mr. Vivek Jain  
3. Ms. Vrishti Kaushik 
4. Ms. Deepti Dole (External Member) 

6. Internal Risk Management Committee 1. Mr. Sanjay Tiwari 
2. Mr. G. Srinivasan  
3. Ms. Vrishti Kaushik 

 

22. Risk Management  
Company has a comprehensive Risk Management Policy in place and has laid down a well-defined risk 

management framework to identify, access and monitor various elements of risk involved in the business and 

strengthen controls to mitigate risks. As per para 3(I) of the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate 

Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 and para no. 50 of Master Direction – Non-Banking 

Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the Risk Management 

Committee was duly constituted which is responsible for putting in place a risk management system, risk 

management policy and strategy to be followed by the Company and monitor risk at regular intervals. 

23. Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
The Company does not have any activity relating to conservation of energy and technical absorption and does 
not own any manufacturing facility. Hence the requirement of disclosure of particulars relating to 
conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules framed thereunder is not applicable. There were no foreign exchange earnings and expenditure during 
the period under review. 
 

24. Directors Responsibility Statement 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirm 
that: 

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year March 31, 2022, the applicable Accounting 
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of the Company for that year; 
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c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

25. Extract of Annual Return  
The extract of Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 will be made available on the website of the Company on 
www.altumcredo.com. 
 

26. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments  
Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 loans made, guarantees given or securities provided 
by a Housing Finance Company in the ordinary course of business are exempted from disclosure in the Annual 
Report.   
 

27. Deposits 
Your Company is registered as a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company with National Housing Bank 
and hence does not accept deposits. No deposits were accepted from the public in the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2022.  
 

28. Employees Stock Option Plan 
The Board of Directors of the Company administers and monitors the Employees Stock Option Scheme in 
accordance with the provisions under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. 

The applicable disclosures as stipulated under Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014, as at March 31, 2022 are set out in “Annexure A” which forms a part of the Report. 
 

29. Particulars of related party transactions 
During the period under report the Company has not entered into any related party transactions. Hence, no 
particulars are required to be disclosed in the Form AOC-2 w.r.t. the provisions of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. All transactions with 
related parties are subject to the approval of the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee including the limits, terms and conditions, if any, imposed thereon. 

 
30. Corporate Social Responsibility 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable 
to the Company. 
 

31. Reporting of Fraud 
The Company has also put a reporting system in place for recording frauds as stipulated in guidelines dated 
February 5, 2019 issued by NHB. One fraud amounting to Rs. 23.62 lakhs. 
 

32. Compliance with Secretarial Standards 
The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards for Board Meetings and General Meetings. 

 
33. Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 

  

http://www.altumcredo.com/
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34. Details in respect of appointment of Internal Auditors  
Though not mandatory, as a proactive good corporate governance practice, the Company had already 
appointed M/s. BDO India LLP, as an Internal Auditor of the Company in the FY 22. During on-going FY 23, 
the Company’s outstanding loans from Banks & Financial Institutions has crossed ₹100 crores and as per the 
provisions of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 the Company is mandatorily required to appoint Internal 
Auditor.  
 
Pursuant to the abovementioned provisions, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 11, 2022, 
appointed M/s. BDO India LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as the Internal Auditor of the Company to 
undertake the Internal Audit process for the financial year 2022-23. 
 

35. Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
The Company is already in Compliance with the provisions of Section 22 and 28 of The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and has an Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Policy covering all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees). An Internal Committee (IC) has 
also been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. During the year under review, 
the Company has not received any complaint pertaining to sexual harassment and hence no complaint is 
outstanding as on March 31, 2022.  
 
36. Vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy 
The Company as part of the “Vigil Mechanism” has in place a “Whistle Blower Policy” to deal with instances 
of fraud and misappropriations, if any. This policy has been placed on the website of the Company. During 
the year under review, no whistle blower complaint was received. 
 

37. Reserve Bank of India and National Housing Bank Guidelines 
Your Company has complied with the provisions of the Master Directions for Housing Finance Companies as 
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India and has been in compliance with the various circulars, notifications and 
guidelines issued by RBI and NHB from time to time. The Circulars, Notifications and guidelines issued by 
RBI and NHB are also placed before the Board of Directors at regular intervals to update the Board members 
on the status of compliance with the same.  
 
During the year, the Company did not receive any Adverse/Show Cause notices and there was no penalty 
levied by NHB on the Company. 
 

38. Significant and Material order passed  
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts/ Tribunals which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations 
 

39. Disclosure pursuant to National Housing Bank Act, 1987 read with the Housing finance 
companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company – 
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 

a) Your Company is in compliance with all applicable provisions of NHB Act, 1987 and Directions, Guidelines 
and Circulars issued by NHB and Reserve Bank of India from time to time. 

b) Your Company being a Non-Public Deposit accepting Housing Finance Company, is not required to make 
disclosures in pursuance to para no. 68 of Non-Banking Financial Company –Housing Finance Company 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021  

c) The Board of Directors periodically review compliance of the Fair Practices Code and the functioning of the 
grievance redressal mechanism at various levels of management.  

d) In terms of HFC-Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016, details of all material transactions with 
related parties, if any, are disclosed in this report or Financial Statement attached to this Report and Policy on 
dealing with Related Party Transactions have already been uploaded on Company’s website and attached to 
this report as Annexure B.    

e) Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report to the Shareholders.  
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For & On behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Managing Director & CEO    Independent Director 
DIN: 06552246      DIN: 07214254 

 
Date: June 10, 2022      
Place: Pune    
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Annexure 'A' to Board’s Report 
EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTIONS 

(Pursuant to clause 12 (9) of the companies (share capital and Debenture) Rules,2014) 
 

                                                           
1. Details of Employee stock option plan list as on 31st March 2022 
 

# Particulars No of options 
1. Options approved to be issued as ESOPs 13,25,000 
2. Options Granted* 10,80,406 
3. Options Vested 4,68,489 
4. Options Exercised 2,99,656 
5. The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 2,99,656 
6. Options Lapsed/ Surrendered 1,05,000 
7. The exercise price ₹10/- to ₹45/- 
8. Variation of Terms of Options NA 
9. Money realized by exercise of options during the year 2020-21 9,50,000 
10. Total number of options in force 6,75,750 
11. Details of options granted to:  
i) Key managerial personnel Mr. Sanjay Tiwari  

(Chief Financial Officer) 
ii) any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of 

option amounting to five percent or more of options granted during that 
year 

Nil 

iii) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, 
equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of 
grant 

Nil 

 *this excludes the option granted and lapsed before April 01, 2021 

 
For & On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 
 
 
 
Name: Vikrant Bhagwat     Name: Himanshu Joshi 
Designation: Managing Director & CEO   Designation: Director 
DIN: 06552246      DIN: 07214254  

Date: Jun 10, 2022      
Place: Pune       
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Annexure 'B' to Board’s Report 
POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
1. OBJECTIVE:  

“Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016” (‘NHB 

Directions’) require a housing finance company to formulate a Policy on Related Party Transactions and also 

on dealing with such Related Party Transactions 

Accordingly, this Policy has been framed to ensure the following: 

• Transactions are approved as per Policy 

• Appropriate disclosure of all transactions are made 

2. APPLICABILITY: 

The policy applies to all the transactions which fall within the ambit of policy of Related Party Transactions 

defined hereunder as “Related Party Transaction”.   

This Policy applies to transactions between the Company and one or more of its Related Parties. It provides a 

framework for governance and reporting of Related Party transactions. 

3. DEFINITIONS:  

3.1 “Applicable Laws” includes (a) the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act‟) and rules made thereunder; (b) 

Accounting Standards (c) National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, NHB Housing Finance Companies Directions 

and Notifications issued by NHB from time to time and (d) any other statute, law, standards, regulations or 

other governmental instruction relating to Related Party Transactions. 

3.2 “Arm’s length Transactions” means a transaction between two Related Parties that is conducted as if they 

are unrelated so that there is no conflict of interest. 

3.3 “Audit Committee or Committee” means Committee of Board of Directors of the Company constituted 

under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

3.4 “Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 

and includes: 

i. Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or manager and in their absence, a wholetime director;  

ii. Company Secretary; and  

iii. Chief Financial Officer 

3.5 “Omnibus approval” In case of certain frequent/ repetitive/ regular transactions with Related Parties 

which are in the ordinary course of business of the Company and on Arm’s length basis, the Audit Committee 

may grant an omnibus approval for such Related Party Transactions. 

3.6 “Ordinary course of business” includes but not limited to a term for activities that are necessary, normal, 

and incidental to the business. These are common practices and customs of commercial transactions. The 

ordinary course of business covers the usual transactions, customs and practices related to the business.  

3.7 “Related Party” means any person who is  

i. a related party under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder;  

ii. a related party under the applicable accounting standards; or  

iii. any other person or entity covered under Applicable Laws.  

3.8 “Related party transaction” A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations 

between a company and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

3.9 “Relative” means relative as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. 
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4. PROCEDURES:  

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company will review the relevant facts and 

circumstances of each Related Party Transaction. 

Accordingly, in the month of March of every Financial Year, management shall present to the Committee the 

following information with respect to all Related Party Transactions expected to be entered into during that 

financial year. The Audit Committee shall be provided with the following information and details pertaining 

to each proposed related party transactions/ contracts – 

i. The name of the related party and nature of relationship;  

ii. The nature, duration of the transaction / contract or arrangement and particulars of the transaction/ 

contract or arrangement;  

iii. The material terms of the transaction/contract or arrangement including the value and / or the 

maximum amount for which the same is proposed to be entered into;  

iv. Any advance paid or received for the transaction / contract or arrangement, if any;  

v. The manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms, both included as part of 

transaction / contract and not considered as part of the same;  

vi. No director shall participate in approval of a Related Party Transaction for which he or she is a Related 

Party.  

4.1 The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions, which are repetitive in 

nature and are proposed to be entered into by the Company. Omnibus approval shall be valid for a period of 

one year and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.  

4.2 Approval of Board of Directors and Shareholders 

The Audit Committee shall report all ‘Material Related Party Transactions’ to the Board of Directors.  

The Company will also seek shareholder’s approval for those Related Party Transactions exceeding threshold 
limits specified under Section 188 and Rules made thereunder of the Companies Act, 2013 in the 
subsequent general meeting of the year in which the Related Party Transaction is undertaken.  
 
The resolution will be an Ordinary resolution. In case of transactions, which are not ordinary course of 

business or not at arm’s length, approval from the Board will be required.  

4.3. Reporting:  

Every director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a director and thereafter at the 

first meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any change in the disclosures already 

made, then at the first Board meeting held after such change, disclose by giving notice in form MBP- 1 his 

concern or interest whether directly or indirectly, in a contract or arrangement or proposed contract or 

arrangement entered into or to be entered into—  

(a) With a body corporate in which such director or such director in association with any other director, 

holds more than two per cent shareholding of that body corporate, or is a promoter, manager, Chief 

Executive Officer of that body corporate; or  

(b) With a firm or other entity in which, such director is a partner, owner or member, as the case may be, 

shall disclose the nature of his concern or interest at the meeting of the Board in which the contract or 

arrangement is discussed and shall not participate in such meeting:  

Provided that where any director who is not so concerned or interested at the time of entering into such 

contract or arrangement, he shall, if he becomes concerned or interested after the contract or arrangement is 

entered into, disclose his concern or interest forthwith when he becomes concerned or interested or at the first 

meeting of the Board held after he becomes so concerned or interested.  

Each Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be required to disclose to the Audit Committee any 

potential Related Party Transaction(s) proposed to be entered into by them or their relatives. The particulars 
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of all the Related Party Transaction entered into with the approval of the Audit Committee / Board of 

Directors / Shareholders shall be entered into the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors 

are interested, maintained by the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 

thereunder.  

5. DISCLOSURES OF THE POLICY:  

5.1. Disclosure will be made in the Company’s Annual Report of the particulars of the contract and 

arrangement along with the justification for entering into such contracts/arrangements with the Related 

Parties as part of the Directors’ Report.    

5.2. This Policy will also be uploaded on the Company website and web link thereto shall be provided in the 

Annual Report of the Company every year. 
 

 

 

 

  



 

  
Page 32 Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited | Annual Report 2021-22 

Annexure 'C' to Board’s Report 
Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report  

For the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2022 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

CTS No - 1074/1, Plot No - 426/1,  

Gokhale Road Model Colony,  

Shivajinagar, Pune - 411016 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to the good corporate practices by Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited (CIN: 

U65999PN2016PTC166384) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 

and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verifications of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications 

given to me and the representations made by the management, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 

Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 (hereinafter 

called the ‘Audit Period’), generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available 

to me and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder. 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'),  

a. The Securities and   Exchange   Board   of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and     Employee    

Stock    Purchase    Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 

Period) 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period) 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

(vi) The Company has identified the following laws and regulations as specifically applicable to the Company: 

1. National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Guidelines and Circulars issued thereunder from time 

to time. 

2. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2021         

 

(vii) Other laws applicable to the Company: 

        

1. Taxation Laws 

2. Labour Laws such as Employee State Insurance Act, 1948; The Labour Welfare Fund, 1953;  

3. Employees Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952; Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 etc. 

4. The Shop and Establishment Acts of various states 

5. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

I have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board meetings and general meetings. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

. I further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect 

tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this Audit 

since the same have been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other 

designated professionals. 

   I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings. Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at a 

shorter notice, and a system exist for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda 

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

As per the minutes of the Board meetings and Committee meetings, duly recorded and signed by the 

Chairman, the decisions of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board were unanimous and no 

dissenting views have been recorded. 

I further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company, in my 

opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 

of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that, during the audit period, the Company  

1. issued and allotted through private placement basis;  

a) 30,41,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at an issue price of Rs. 62.50 per equity share (including 

premium of Rs. 52.50 per equity share) aggregating to Rs. 190,062,500/- 

b) 2,20,78,000 Series B Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each at an issue 

price of Rs. 31.25 per equity share (including premium of Rs. 21.25 per CCPS) aggregating to Rs. 

689,937,500/- 

 

2. allotted 50,750 equity shares pursuant to exercise of options granted under Employee Stock Option Scheme 

of the Company. 

 

3. Increased its Authorised Share Capital and consequent to it has altered it Memorandum of Association. 

 

4. had altered the Articles of Association for the deletion of clauses relating to ‘common seal’.  

     

5. had received a sanction of Rs. 20 crores from National Housing Bank under National Housing Bank’s 

refinance scheme and Rs. 10 crores under National Housing Bank’s Special Refinance Facility 2021. 

 

6. had appointed auditors due to casual vacancy caused due to resignation of the existing auditors. 

 

7. had adopted new set of Articles of Association consequent to the execution of the shareholders agreement 

on 10th November, 2021. 

 

Date: 10th June, 2022                                                              Priya Vishwanathan 

Place: Mumbai                                                                       Practicing Company Secretary   

                                                                                                 ACS No.23377 | CP No. 20651                             

               UDIN:  

 

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-1’ and forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure-1’ 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

CTS No - 1074/1, Plot No - 426/1,  

Gokhale Road Model Colony,  

Shivajinagar, Pune - 411016 

 

My report of even date is to be read with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I 

followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts of the 

Company. 

 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained Management Representation about the compliance laws, rules and 

regulations, and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a 

test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

Date: 10th June, 2022                                                             Priya Vishwanathan 

Place: Mumbai                                                                      Practicing Company Secretary   

                                                                                                ACS No.23377 | CP No. 20651                             

             UDIN:  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
To the Members of Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements  
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial 

Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read 

with the ruled made thereunder, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit, and its 

cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under sub-section (10) of 

section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the SAs”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described 

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not 

include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs, its profit, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 

133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system in 

place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 

to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 
 
Other Matter 

 

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 were audited by the predecessor 

auditors who have expressed an unmodified opinion on the Financial Statements vide their report dated June 

14, 2021. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from 

being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

“Annexure  B”. 

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022, on its financial 

position in its Financial Statements - Refer note no. 31 - Contingent Liabilities to the Financial 

Statements; 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the notes to the accounts (Refer note 32.1 to the Financial Statements), no funds have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 

of funds) by the Company  to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued) 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the notes to the accounts (Refer note 32.1 to the Financial Statements), no funds have been received 

by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under iv(a) and iv(b) above, contain any 

material misstatement. 

(v) The Company has neither declared dividend during the year nor paid any dividend during the 

year; 

4. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company 

as it is a private limited company.  

 
 

For M. P. Chitale & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101851W 

 

Sanat Ulhas Chitale 

Partner 

ICAI Membership No.: 143700 

UDIN: 22143700ALLWGM9843 

 

Place: Pune 

Date: June 10, 2022 
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Independent Auditor’s Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 
 
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2022 
 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company of even date: 

(i) (a) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment including intangible assets 

 (b) In our opinion, the Company’s program of verifying Property, Plant and Equipment once in a 

year, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

Pursuant to such program, the physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment were 

physically verified by the Company during the year. We have been informed that no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable properties in the 
name of the Company. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 (d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets 

during the year. 

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on management 

representations, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company as at 

March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 

Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company is in the business of Housing Finance; therefore, it does not hold any physical 

inventories. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 

aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) (a) Since the Company is in business of Housing Finance, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 

loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties 

covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently, the provisions of 

clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 (c) The Company is principally engaged in the business of providing loans. In respect of loans 

granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has 

been duly stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest have 

generally been regular as per repayment schedules except for 18 cases having outstanding 

balance at year end aggregating to Rs. 206.59 Lakhs wherein the repayments of principal and 

interest are not regular.  Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business and the volume 

of information involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemized list of loan assets where 

repayment of principal and interest have not been regular. 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

 (d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the total amount overdue for more than 90 days as 

at the balance sheet date are as under; 

No. of cases Principal amount overdue 
(Rs. Lakhs) 

Interest overdue 
(Rs. Lakhs) 

Total overdue  
(Rs. Lakhs) 

18 167.13 39.46 206.59 

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, the 

Company has taken reasonable steps to recover the principal and interest amount. 

 (e) Since the Company is in business of Housing Finance, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 (f) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, the 

Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were either repayable 

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

(iv)  There are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are attracted. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted 

any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within 

the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the 

extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge, 

the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section 

1 of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Rules, 2014, as amended for the services of the Company, and, hence, reporting on clause 3(vi) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of examination of 

the books of account of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is 

generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess 

and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to information and explanations 

given to us, no undisputed amount payable was outstanding, at the year-end, for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues as 

mentioned in sub-clause vii(a) above which have not been deposited with the appropriate 

authorities on account of any dispute except as mentioned below:  

 

Details of dues of Income Tax, which has not been deposited as at March 31, 2022, on account 

of dispute are given below: 

Nature of the 

statute 

Nature of 

dues 

Forum where 

dispute is 

pending 

Period to which the        

amount Relates 

Amount 

(Rs. Lakhs) 

The Income 

Tax Act, 1961 

Income Tax CIT (Appeals) A.Y. 2019 – 20 6.05 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

(viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments made during the year under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 

to any lender. 

 (b) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority during the year. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination 

of the books of account, the Company has utilized the money raised by way of term loans during 

the year for the purposes for which they were raised, except for placement of funds aggregating 

to Rs. 2,486 Lakhs in Bank accounts/ Fixed Deposits with Banks, pending utilization of funds as 

per the respective sanction terms. 

 (d) On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, no funds 

have been raised on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

 (e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture entity, accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 (f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture entity, accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

 (b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment and private placement of 

compulsorily convertible preference shares and equity shares. In our opinion and according to 

the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements 

of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preferential allotment 

and private placement; The funds raised have been utilized for the purposes for which they were 

raised except for placement aggregating to Rs. 6,973 Lakhs in Bank accounts/ Fixed Deposits 

with Banks, pending utilization of funds as per the respective terms of issuance. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according 

to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instances of fraud 

by the Company. We have come across an instance of material fraud on the Company amounting 

to Rs. 25.79 Lakhs, noticed and reported during the year as per RBI guidelines. 

 (b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance 

of whistle blower complaints reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 

cases by the Company. 

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company. 
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(xiii)  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related 

party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and the nature of its business. 

 (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 

procedures. 

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 

persons connected with directors. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 

 (b) The Company is a Housing Finance Company and it holds a valid Certificate of Registration 

(CoR) from the National Housing Bank issued under Section 29A (2) of the National Housing 

Bank Act 1987 for conducting housing finance business.  

 (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of India. 

 (d) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us the Company is not 

a part of any Group structure, accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 

the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii)  Pursuant to the RBI guidelines dated April 27, 2021, the predecessor statutory auditors (BSR 

and Co. LLP, ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W) of the Company resigned on August 27, 

2021; and that there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors as 

communicated to us. 

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements and 

our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination 

of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 

to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and 

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 

that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx)  In our opinion based on the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 

135 with respect to Corporate Social Responsibilities are not applicable to the Company, 

accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 
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For M. P. Chitale & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101851W 

 

Sanat Ulhas Chitale 

Partner 

Membership No.: 143700 

UDIN: 22143700ALLWGM9843 

 

Place: Pune 

Date: June 10, 2022 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

(xxi)  Based on information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to prepare 

consolidated Financial Statements as per section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report – March 31, 2022 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)  
 
We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Altum Credo 

Home Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the 

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s 

internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of the 

management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 

material effect on the Financial Statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

For M. P. Chitale & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101851W 

 

Sanat Ulhas Chitale 

Partner 

ICAI Membership No.: 143700 

UDIN: 22143700ALLWGM9843 

 

Place: Pune 

Date: June 10, 2022 
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Page 48 Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited | Annual Report 2021-22 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022                                                                 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars   Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES         

(1) Shareholders’ funds         
(a) Share capital   3 8,033.47 5,516.60 
(b) Reserves and surplus   4 14,564.77 7,891.44 

      22,598.24 13,408.04 

(2) Non-current liabilities         
(a) Long term borrowings   5 8,628.29 3,574.88 
(b) Other long-term liabilities   6 6.12 0.04 
(c) Long term provisions   7 446.58 367.89 

      9,080.99 3,942.81 

(3) Current liabilities         
(a) Short term borrowings   8 2,522.08 1,009.93 
(b) Trade payables   9     

(i)  Total o/s dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  - 0.45 
(ii) Total o/s dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and  

 small enterprises  
29.55 14.79 

(c) Other current liabilities   6 154.92 270.28 
(d) Short-term provisions   7 98.87 60.72 

      2,805.42 1,356.17 

 Total      34,484.65 18,707.02 

B. ASSETS     .   

(1) Non-current assets         
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets         

(i) Tangible assets   10 170.90 44.50 
(ii) Intangible assets   10 23.75 33.05 

     194.65 77.55 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net)   11 66.03 76.00 
(c) Long-term loans and advances   12 24,165.35 11,932.44 
(d) Other non-current assets   15 157.12 38.65 

   24,388.50 12,047.09 

      24,583.15 12,124.64 

(2) Current assets         
(a) Current investments   13 5.66 34.52 

(b) Cash and bank balances   14 8,674.42 5,965.98 
(c) Short-term loans and advances   12 1,047.69 488.44 
(d) Other current assets   15 173.73 93.44 

      9,901.50 6,582.38 

 Total      34,484.65 18,707.02 

Notes 2 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements                                        

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For M. P. Chitale & Co.                                                                    Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

Chartered Accountants CIN: U65999PN2016PTC166384 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. 101851W  
 
 
 
Sanat Ulhas Chitale Vikrant Bhagwat Himanshu Joshi 
Partner Managing Director Independent Director 

ICAI Membership No.: 143700 DIN: 06552246   DIN: 07214254 
 
Place: Pune 
Date: June 10, 2022 

 
 
 
Sanjay Tiwari   Vrishti Kaushik 

 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
 Place: Pune  
 Date: June 10, 2022 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 
 

(Rs. in Lakhs)                                                          

 Particulars   Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

 Revenue           
 Revenue from operations   16 3,321.08 1,736.55 

 Other income   17 322.08 296.44 

(I) Total revenue      3,643.16 2,032.99 

 Expenses         
 Employee benefit expense   18 1,635.49 851.47 

 Finance costs   19 720.35 307.44 

 Depreciation and amortization expense   10 38.54 36.80 

 Other expenses   20 564.39 225.76 

 Provisions   21 77.81 270.63 

(II) Total Expenses      3,036.58 1,692.10 

(III) Profit before tax  [(I)–(II)]     606.58 340.89 

(IV) Tax expense:         
 Current tax     149.95 93.93 
 Deferred tax (credit)/charge   11 9.97 (76.00) 

    159.92 17.93 

(V) Profit for the year  [(III)-(IV)]     446.66 322.96 

 Earnings per equity share    27     

 Basic (Rs.)     1.06 0.79 
 Diluted (Rs.)     0.69 0.58 

 Face value per share (Rs.)     10 10 

Notes 2 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements                                                                     

 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For M. P. Chitale & Co. Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

Chartered Accountants CIN: U65999PN2016PTC166384 
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 101851W  

  

 
      

        
Sanat Ulhas Chitale Vikrant Bhagwat Himanshu Joshi 
Partner Managing Director Independent Director 
ICAI Membership No.: 143700 DIN: 06552246   DIN: 07214254 
    
Place: Pune 

Date: June 10, 2022       

       

 Sanjay Tiwari   Vrishti Kaushik 
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
 Place: Pune  
 Date: June 10, 2022   
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Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

    (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars     March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
     

Cash flow from operational activities     
Profit/(Loss) before tax   606.58 340.89 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation and amortization expense   38.54 36.80 

Employee stock option expense   23.53 10.52 

Loss on sale/write-off of fixed assets   3.01 1.11 

Finance cost   720.35 307.44 

Interest earned on deposits / Dividend received from investments (322.09) (293.69) 

Operating profit before working capital changes   1,069.93 403.07 

Adjustments for changes in working capital:     

Increase in short term / long term provisions   125.81 268.38 

Increase in other long term/current liabilities   (130.46) 218.32 

Increase in trade payable   14.31 20.15 

Increase in long-term and short-term advances   (12,792.16) (3,847.50) 

Increase in other current and other non-current assets   (187.49) (33.22) 

Cash flow (used in) operating activities before tax     (11,900.06) (2,970.80) 

Income tax paid (net of refunds)     (159.35) (46.15) 

Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A)     (12,059.41) (3,016.95) 

Cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities     

Net (investment)/ redemption in mutual funds   28.87 (22.42) 

Net (investment)/ redemption in fixed deposits   (50.50) 3,940.01 

Interest earned on deposits   310.36 349.99 

Dividend received from mutual fund investments   0.46 5.37 

Proceeds on sale of fixed assets   2.95 0.12 

Purchase of fixed assets    (161.32) (7.80) 

Net cash flow generated from investing activities (B)     130.82 4,265.27 

Cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities     

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (net of issue expenses) 8,720.14 10.45 

Borrowings from Banks/financial institutions   8,700.00 2,900.00 

Repayments of borrowings during the year   (2,134.43) (520.86) 

Finance cost paid   (699.19) (302.87) 

Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C)     14,586.52 2,086.72 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year  2,657.93 3,335.04 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   5,465.99 2,130.94 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year     8,123.92 5,465.98 
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Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Components of cash and cash equivalents   
Cash in hand 0.58 0.48 

Balance with banks   

- on current accounts 1,174.34 1,207.37 

- on deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 6,949.00 4,258.13 

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 8,123.92 5,465.98 

 Notes 2 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements                                                                     

 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For M. P. Chitale & Co. Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited 

Chartered Accountants CIN: U65999PN2016PTC166384 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. 101851W  

       

  

  
 
 
      

Sanat Ulhas Chitale Vikrant Bhagwat Himanshu Joshi 
Partner Managing Director Independent Director 
ICAI Membership No.: 143700 DIN: 06552246   DIN: 07214254 
    
Place: Pune 

Date: June 10, 2022       

       

 Sanjay Tiwari   Vrishti Kaushik 
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

 

Place: Pune  

Date: June 10, 2022  
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 

31, 2022 

1. Corporate Information 

Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on September 12, 2016 with 

primary objective to cater to home finance needs of customer segment which has limited access to long 

term finance. The Company received certification of registration from the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) 

on June 1, 2017 (w.e.f. May 18, 2017) to commence the business of Housing Finance without accepting 

public deposits. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these 

financial statements. 

2.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention and 

accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the generally accepted 

accounting principles in India (“Indian GAAP”), and conform to the statutory requirements, circulars and 

guidelines issued by the Reserve bank of India ("RBI") and NHB from time to time to the extent applicable. 

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting 

Standards (“AS”) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable. 

2.2. Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

(GAAP) requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 

of accounting policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expense and the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting 

estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.  

2.3. Current-non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal 

operating cycle;  

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  

c) it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or  

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting date.   

Current assets include current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-

current. 

Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;  

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  

c) it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or  

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, 

result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are 

classified as non-current. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 

Operating cycle 

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or 

cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company is less than 12 months. 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment, depreciation and amortization 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment, if any. The cost of acquisition includes inward freight, duties, taxes and other directly 

attributable incidental expenses.  

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful 

lives of the assets prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Office Equipment    - 5 years 

Computers and data processing units - 3 years 

Furniture and fittings   - 10 years 

Vehicles     - 5 years 

Leasehold improvements - over period of lease or estimated useful life  

whichever is lower 

Intangible Assets    - 5 years 

Intangible assets are recognized when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is 

probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and 

cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assets representing software are initially recorded at 

their acquisition price and are amortized over its estimated useful life / period of contractual rights on a 

straight-line basis, commencing from the date the assets are available for its use. its use. The useful life of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is reviewed by the management at each Balance Sheet 

date. 

2.5. Revenue Recognition 

Interest income on loans is recognized on accrual basis except in case of non-performing assets where 

interest is recognized upon realization as per the RBI guidelines. Repayment of housing loans is by way of 

Equated Monthly Instalments (“EMI”) comprising principal and interest. Interest is calculated on monthly 

reducing balance in terms of financing scheme opted by the borrower. EMI commences once the entire loan 

is disbursed. Pending commencement of EMI, pre- EMI interest is charged every month and is accounted 

on accrual basis.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Income on Non-performing assets is recognized only when realized and any interest accrued until the asset 

became a Non-performing asset and remaining overdue is de-recognized in the month in which the loan is 

classified as Non-Performing. 

Loan Documentation and Processing fees are recognised on sanction of loans and when there is no 

significant uncertainty as to determination and realization. Other charges such as loan sourcing fees, 

cheque bounce charges, late payment charges, SOA charges, Foreclosure statement charges are recognized 

on realization. 

Interest income on fixed deposits is accounted on accrual basis and is recognized on a time proportion 

basis. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 

2.6. Loans: Classification and provisioning 

Housing loans are classified as per the RBI guidelines, into performing and non-performing assets. All 

loans and other credit exposures where the instalments, including interest and other dues are overdue for 

a period of more than ninety days are classified as non-performing assets in accordance with the prudential 

norms prescribed by the RBI. The Company upgrades the non-performing assets when the instalments, 

including interest and other dues are overdue for a period of less than ninety days. RBI vide it’s circular 

dated February 15, 2022,  has given extension till September 30, 2022 to put in place the necessary systems 

to implement the provision to upgrade the loan accounts classified as non-performing assets as ‘standard’ 

asset only if entire arrears of interest and principal are paid by the borrower. The Company is classifying 

any non-performing assets as sub-standard and doubtful whose instalments, including interest and other 

dues are overdue for a period of 4 to 15 months and more than 15 months respectively as stated by RBI 

guidelines.  

The Company maintains general provision for standard assets as per the prudential norms prescribed by 

the RBI. The prudential norms require the Company to maintain provision of 0.25% on standard home loan 

assets across income segments. Considering customer segment predominantly belonging to EWS/LIG 

segment; Company, as part of accounting policy, has provided provisioning of 0.40% (additional 0.15%) on 

the standard home loans assets beginning from current financial year. Additional provisions are made 

against specific non-performing assets over and above as stated in the RBI guidelines, if in the opinion of 

management, a higher provision is necessary 

Loans which are restructured as per RBI’s Resolution Plan Framework for COVID-19 related Stress are 

classified as standard assets and provision is maintained on such assets as per norms prescribed by RBI in 

this regard. In the previous year, the Company had considered the possible effects that may result from the 

COVID-19 pandemic on carrying amount of its loan assets and the corresponding credit losses and had 

made additional contingency provision based on the information available at this point of time including 

economic forecasts and expected stress in the economy. The Management shall periodically review the 

adequacy of this provision. Refer Note 29 and 33.21 to the Financial Statements for more details. 

2.7. Investment 

In accordance with AS - 13 on “Accounting for Investments”, investments expected to mature after twelve 

months are taken as long-term investment and stated at cost. Provision is recognized only in case of 

diminution, which is other than temporary in nature. All other investments are recognized as current 

investments and are valued at lower of cost and fair value. In case of unquoted units of schemes of mutual 

fund, NAV declared by respective mutual fund is considered as fair value. 

2.8. Impairment  

In accordance with AS 28 – Impairment of Assets , the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are 

reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any 

such indications exist, the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated, as the higher of the net selling price and 

the value in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash 

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that a 

previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is 

reflected at the recoverable amount, subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 

2.9. Employee Benefits 

a) Defined contribution plans: Contributions payable to the recognized provident fund which is a 

defined contribution scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

b) Defined benefit plans: The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The 

Company‘s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount 

of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; 

that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is 

deducted.  The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on 

valuation carried out by an independent actuary (using Projected Unit Credit Method), which recognizes 

each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each 

unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used 

for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market 

yield of Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized 

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Compensated absences: The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued 

compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination 

of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end 

of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized 

wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee 

benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the 

employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of 

independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 

b) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original 

maturity of three months or less. 

c) Leases 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the 

lease term are classified as operating lease. Operating lease rentals are recognized over the period of the 

lease in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis in accordance with the Accounting Standard 

19 ‘Leases’. 

d) Earnings per share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) in accordance with AS 20 "Earnings per 

Share".  Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is 

computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders (After adjusting the impact 

of cumulative preference dividends) by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are anti-

dilutive. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 

e) Taxes on Income 

Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e., amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 

the income tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between 

accounting income and taxable income for the period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the 

corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there 

is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed 

depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 

virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date 

and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may 

be) to be realized. 

The Company has opted for the concessional tax regime and has availed the option to pay tax at the rate of 

22% plus applicable surcharge and health and education cess payable by corporate entities in India on 

taxable profits under the Income Tax Act 1961. 

f) Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be 

estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation. Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Contingencies: Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, 

penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be 

estimated reliably. 

g) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation 

that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount 

cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the 

possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the 

financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that 

an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which 

the change occurs. 

h) Employee stock option scheme 

The Altum Credo Employee Stock Option Plan (the “Scheme”, “ESOP 2017”) has been established by the 

Company. The Scheme provides that employees of Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited are 

granted an option to subscribe to equity share of the Company that vest on the satisfaction of vesting 

conditions. The Company uses the intrinsic value method to account for employee share-based payments. 

The excess of the market price of shares, at the date of grant of options under the Employee Stock Option 

Schemes of the Company, over the exercise price is regarded as employee compensation, and recognised 

on a straight-line basis over the period over which the employees would become unconditionally entitled 

to apply for the shares. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

3. Share Capital 

Authorized:  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

6,25,98,927 (Previous year 4,25,98,927) Equity Shares of ₹10 each 6,259.89 4,259.89 

2,07,51,073 (Previous year 2,07,51,073) 0.001% Series A Compulsory 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ₹10 each 

2,075.11 2,075.11 

2,30,00,000 (Previous year Nil) 0.001% Series B Compulsory 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ₹10 each 

2,300.00  

Total 10,635.00 6,335.00 

   

Issued, subscribed and paid-up shares  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

4,41,73,306 (Previous year 4,10,81,556) Equity Shares of ₹10 each 4,417.33 4,108.16 

1,40,84,407 (Previous year 1,40,84,407) 0.001% Series A Compulsory 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ₹10 each 

1,408.44 1,408.44 

2,20,78,000 (Previous year Nil) 0.001% Series B Compulsory 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ₹10 each 

2,207.80 - 

Total 8,033.47 5,516.60 

 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

a) Equity Shares 
Number of 

shares 
Amount 

Number of 
shares 

Amount 

At the beginning of the year 4,10,81,556 4,108.16 4,10,17,806 4,101.78 

Issued during the year  30,91,750 309.18 63,750 6.38 

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,41,73,306 4,417.43 4,10,81,556 4,108.16 

     

b) 0.001% Series A Compulsorily Convertible 
Cumulative Preference Shares 

Number of 
shares 

Amount 
Number of 

shares 
Amount 

At the beginning of the year 1,40,84,407 1,408.44 1,40,84,407 1,408.44 

Issued during the year  
                                        

-    
                                 

-    
                                     

-    
                                  

-    

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,40,84,407 1,408.44 1,40,84,407 1,408.44 

     

c) 0.001% Series B Compulsorily Convertible 
Cumulative Preference Shares 

Number of 
shares 

Amount 
Number of 

shares 
Amount 

At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Issued during the year  2,20,78,000 2,207.80 - - 

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,20,78,000 2,207.80 - - 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

3.   Share capital (Cont.) 

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹10 per share. Each holder of equity 

shares is entitled to one vote per share. All equity shares rank equally with regards to dividend and share in 

residual assets. Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors, if any dividend proposed by the Board of 

Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The Company has not 

declared / proposed any dividend in the current year and previous year. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 

assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 

shareholders. 

c. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference Shares 

Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("CCPS") shall mandatorily convert into Equity Shares 

at the Conversion Ratio as per Shareholders Agreement executed on November 10, 2021 within 20 years from 

the date on which such CCPS were first issued by the Company. 

The holders of these shares are entitled to a cumulative dividend of 0.001% as and if declared by the Board and 

any additional dividends shall be distributed to all shareholders in proportion to the number of Equity Shares 

that would be held by each such Shareholder if all CCPS were converted to Equity Shares at the then effective 

Conversion Ratio for each such CCPS as per Shareholders Agreement executed on November 10, 2021. 

Each CCPS holder shall be entitled to vote on an ‘as converted basis’ (i.e., the number of votes available to each 

CCPS holder will be equal to the number of Equity Shares which are issuable to such CCPS Holder assuming 

full conversion of all CCPS held by such CCPS Holder into Equity Shares). 

CCPS holders have preference in distribution over other shareholders in accordance with Article 28 of the 

Articles of Association. 

d. Employee stock options 

Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in Note 26 regarding employee share-based 

payments. 

e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Equity Shares 
 Number of 

shares  
 % holding 

 Number of 
shares  

% holding  

1. Ganesh Rao 75,90,000 17.18% 75,90,000 18.48% 

2. Ashish Tewari 80,00,000 18.11% 80,00,000 19.47% 

3. Vikrant Bhagwat 43,12,556 9.76% 43,12,556 10.50% 

4. P. Surendra Pai and family 2,33,85,994 52.94% 2,03,69,994 49.58% 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

3.   Share capital (Cont.) 

e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

0.001% Series A Compulsorily Convertible 
Cumulative Preference Shares 

 Number of 
shares  

 % holding 
 Number of 

shares  
% holding  

1. Aavishkaar Bharat Fund 1,40,84,407 100.00% 1,40,84,407 100.00% 

     

0.001% Series B Compulsorily Convertible 
Cumulative Preference Shares 

Number of 
shares 

% holding 
Number of 

shares 
% holding 

1. Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 1,46,11,000 66.18% - - 

2. Aavishkaar Bharat Fund 60,80,000 27.54% - - 

3. Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I 13,87,000 6.28% - - 

 

f. Shareholding of Promoters 

Name of Promoter 
 Number of 

Equity Shares  
 % holding   

 % of change 
during the year  

1. Ganesh Rao 75,90,000 17.18% 1.3% 

2. Ashish Tewari 80,00,000 18.11% 1.4% 

3. Vikrant Bhagwat 43,12,556 9.76% 0.7% 

 

4. Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Employee stock option reserve     

Balance at the beginning of the year 67.55 72.24 

Add: Employee compensation expense for the year 23.53 10.52 

Less: Share allotment during the year        11.69 15.21 

Balance at the end of the year 79.39 67.55 

Statutory reserve (As per section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 95.63 31.04 

Add: Addition during the year u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 - - 
Add: Addition during the year u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose of Statutory 
Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

89.33 64.59 

Less: Appropriation during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 184.96 95.63 

Securities premium account    

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,731.13 7,711.85 

Add: Premium on issue of equity shares 6,304.22 19.28 

Less: Amounts utilized toward share issue expenses 89.36 - 

Balance at the end of the year 13,945.99 7,731.13 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

4.   Reserves and Surplus (Cont.) 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss   

Balance at the beginning of the year (2.88) (261.23) 

Add: Profit for the year 446.66 322.96 

Appropriations     

Less: Transfer to Special Reserve  89.33 64.59 

Less: Provision for cumulative dividend on preference shares 0.02 0.01 

Balance at the end of the year 354.43 (2.88) 

Total Reserves and Surplus 14,564.77 7,891.44 

 

Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss  

Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss pertains to net accumulated profits of previous years. 

 

Statutory reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act 

As per Section 29C (1) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of 

its net profit after tax every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special 

Reserve created by the Company under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an 

eligible transfer. The company has transferred ₹89.40 lakhs (Previous Year- ₹64.59 lakhs) to the Special Reserve 

in terms of u/s section 29C of NHB Act 1987. 

Securities premium  

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013.      

Share options outstanding account     

The Company has established equity-settled share-based payment plan for certain categories of employees of 

the Company. Refer Note 26 for further details on this plan.     

5. Long-term Borrowings 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Term loans (Secured)     

 - from Banks 5,235.33 1,900.00 

 - from National Housing Bank 2,539.35 477.48 

 - from NBFCs and HFCs 3,375.70 2,207.33 

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 2,522.08 1,009.93 

 Total 8,628.29 3,574.88 

 
Terms of repayment of terms loans as at March 31, 2022 

Interest Rate 5-7 years 3-5 years 1-3 years 0-1 years Total 

From Banks      

10% - 11.25% p.a. 642.35 1,192.26 2,276.43 1,124.29 5,235.33 

From National Housing Bank      

5.65% p.a. 529.98 740.74 740.79 527.79 2,539.30 

From NBFCs and HFCs      

11.75% - 13.25% p.a. - 771.30 1,734.40 870.00 3,375.70 

 Total 1,172.33 2,704.30 4,751.62 2,522.08 11,150.33 
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5. Long-term Borrowings (Cont.) 
 
Terms of repayment of terms loans as at March 31, 2021 

Interest Rate 5-7 years 3-5 years 1-3 years 0-1 years Total 

From Banks      

10% - 11.25% p.a. 8.33 520.00 920.00 451.67 1,900.00 

From National Housing Bank      

5.65% p.a. 125.63 148.15 148.15 55.56 477.49 

From NBFCs and HFCs      

11.75% - 13.25% p.a. - 620.50 1,084.12 502.71 2,207.33 

  Total 133.96 1,288.65 2,152.27 1,009.94 4,584.82 

All term loans are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e., loans and advances repayable over tenure 

ranging from 4-7 years. The rates of interest for some loans are linked to or based on bank base rates/T-bill/Repo 

rates. The Company does not any have charge or satisfaction of charge which are yet to be registered with 

Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

Vikrant Bhagwat, the MD and CEO has given personal guarantee provided for borrowings taken by the 

Company as at year end. 

6. Other Liabilities 

Particulars Non-Current Current 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Income received in advance  - - 16.22 8.31 

Deferred rent 6.06 - - 2.63 

Statutory liabilities - - 35.32 26.52 

Accrued employee cost - - 67.62 11.19 

Interest on borrowing accrued but not due - - 34.46 13.30 

Loan disbursement liability - - - 206.35 

Others  0.06 0.04 1.30 1.98 

 Total  6.12 0.04 154.92 270.28 

6.1. Provisions  

Particulars Non-Current Current 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Provision for employee benefits         

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 25) - - 10.00 - 

Provision for compensated absences 5.53 2.44 3.70 1.65 

Provision for taxation (net) - - 7.31 16.29 

Provision for expenses - - 63.68 30.80 

Other Provisions*     

a) Provision for NPA assets 76.19 31.61 - - 

b) Provision for Standard assets 92.77 32.22 3.69 1.45 

c) Provision for assets under COVID-19 
Restructuring Plan 

77.95 35.95 3.02 - 

d) Additional COVID-19 Contingency 
provision on standard assets 

194.14 265.67 7.47 10.53 

  Total 446.58 367.89 98.87 60.72 

*Refer Note 29 and 33.21(2) 
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7. Short term borrowings 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Term loans (Secured)     

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 2,522.08 1,009.93 

 Total  2,522.08 1,009.93 

8. Trade payables 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Other than acceptances:     

Total o/s dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 22) - 0.45 

Total o/s dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises     

29.55 14.79 

Total 29.55 15.24 

The Company has not entered into any transactions with struck off companies during the current year (Previous 

Year: Nil) 

Trade Payables Ageing as on March 31, 2022:  

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) MSME  - - - - - 

(ii) Others  29.55 - - - 29.55 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  - - - - - 

(iv) Disputed dues – Others - - - - - 

      
Trade Payables Ageing as on March 31, 2021:  

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) MSME  0.45 - - - 0.45 

(ii) Others  14.79 - - - 14.79 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  - - - - - 

(iv) Disputed dues – Others - - - - - 

 

 

This space has been left blank intentionally 



 

  
Page 63 Altum Credo Home Finance Private Limited | Annual Report 2021-22 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Cont.) 
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

9. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  

 
Tangible Assets - Property Plant and Equipment 

Intangible 
Assets 

 

  
Leasehold 

Improvement 
Computers 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

Vehicles 
Office 

Equipment 

Total 
Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment 

Computer 
Software  

Total Assets 

Cost                 

As at 1 April 2021 20.98 46.20 27.88 10.49 11.35 116.90 56.68 173.58 

Additions 109.20 39.79 8.56   1.59 159.14 2.18 161.32 

Disposals 20.58 0.72 3.89 10.49 1.87 37.55   37.55 

As at 31 March 2022 109.60 85.27 32.55 - 11.07 238.49 58.86 297.35 

Depreciation/Amortisation                 

As at 1 April 2021 13.68 35.80 9.05 7.28 6.58 72.39 23.64 96.03 

Charge for the year 11.64 9.35 2.92 0.52 2.54 26.97 11.47 38.54 

Disposals 19.49 0.72 2.01 7.80 1.55 31.57   31.57 

As at 31 March 2022 5.83 44.43 9.86 - 7.57 67.79 35.11 103.00 

Net book value                 

As at 31 March 2022 103.77 40.94 22.69 - 3.50 170.90 23.75 194.65 

As at 31 March 2021 7.30 10.40 18.83 3.21 4.77 44.51 33.04 77.55 
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (Cont.)   

 
Tangible Assets - Property Plant and Equipment 

Intangible 
Assets 

 

  
Leasehold 

Improvement 
Computers 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

Vehicles 
Office 

Equipment 

Total 
Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment 

Computer 
Software  

Total Assets 

Cost                 

As at 1 April 2020 20.98 39.23 28.59 10.49 11.30 110.59 56.68 167.27 

Additions   6.97 0.78 - 0.05 7.80 - 7.80 

Disposals - - 1.49 - - 1.49 - 1.49 

As at 31 March 2021 20.98 46.20 27.88 10.49 11.35 116.89 56.68 173.57 

Depreciation/Amortisation                 

As at 1 April 2020 7.30 23.79 6.55 5.19 4.32 47.15 12.33 59.48 

Charge for the year 6.38 12.01 2.76 2.09 2.26 25.49 11.31 36.80 

Disposals - - 0.26 - - 0.26 - 0.26 

As at 31 March 2021 13.68 35.80 9.05 7.28 6.58 72.38 23.64 96.02 

Net book value                 

As at 31 March 2021 7.30 10.40 18.83 3.21 4.77 44.51 33.04 77.55 

As at 31 March 2020 13.68 15.44 22.04 5.30 6.98 63.44 44.35 107.79 
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont.) 

The Company does not own any immovable property held in name of other entity. The Company has not 

revalued any item of Property, Plant or Equipment during the year. The Company does not hold any Benami 

properties and no proceedings have been initiated against the Company in this relation. 

11. Deferred tax assets (net) 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Deferred tax asset     

Compensated absence 4.89 1.03 

Depreciation - 1.28 

Straight Lining of Rent 1.52 - 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 101.74 90.05 

 Total 108.15 92.36 

Deferred tax liabilities   
Depreciation 3.37 - 

Special reserve created under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act 
1961, DTL to be created in accordance with NHB/(ND)/DRS/Pol 
Circular 62/2014 

38.75 16.36 

Total 42.12 16.36 

Net deferred tax asset recognized in the financial statements 66.03 76.00 

12. Loans and advances 

Particulars Non-current Current 

 March 31,  
2022 

March 31,  
2021 

March 31, 
2022 

March 31,  
2021 

To parties other than related parties         

Loans to customers under financing activities     

Secured; and considered good     

Housing Loans 17,153.32 9,363.61 570.97 303.34 

Non-Housing Loans 6,819.93 2,454.44 382.74 173.69 

  23,973.25 11,818.05 953.71 477.03 

Secured, and considered doubtful     

Housing Loans 140.02 85.79 - - 

Non-Housing Loans 27.11 3.63 - - 

  167.13 89.42 - - 

Net Loans to customers under financing activities 24,140.38 11,907.47 953.71 477.03 

Other loans and advances         

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated:       

Advance Income Tax recoverable 24.97 24.97 - - 

GST receivable - - 1.21 0.68 

Capital advance - - 1.74 - 

Intangible Assets under development - - 3.43  

Other deposits and advances - - 87.60 10.73 

  24.97 24.97 93.98 11.41 

Total  24,165.35 11,932.44 1,047.69 488.44 
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12. Loans and advances (Cont.) 

Capital Advances Ageing as on March 31, 2022:  

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Total 

Capital Work-in-Progress 1.74 - - - - 
Intangible Assets under 
development 3.43 - - - - 

      

13. Current Investments 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Investment in mutual funds - (unquoted) (non-trade)     

Units of ABSL Mutual fund - 17.92 

Units of Nippon India Mutual fund 5.66 5.48 

Units of HDFC Mutual fund - 11.12 

Total  5.66 34.52 

Details of current investments 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

No of units     

ABSL Liquid Fund - Daily dividend - Direct reinvestment - 17,877 

Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Daily Dividend Option 364 359 

HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Dividend Daily Reinvestment - 1,090 

Book value of current investments is equal to fair value.  

14. Cash and bank balances 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cash and cash equivalents:     

Cash in hand 0.58 0.48 

Balance with banks   

- on current accounts 1,174.34 1,207.37 

- on deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 6,949.00 4,258.13 

  8,123.92 5,465.98 

Other banks balances - deposits having maturity less than 12 months 250.50 500.00 

Other banks balances - deposits with maturity more than 12 months 300.00 0.00 

 Total 8,674.42 5,965.98 

Fixed deposits to the tune of ₹550.50 lakhs are Lien marked FDs against overdraft facility/cash 

collateral/provided as collateral for bank guarantee. 
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15. Other assets 

 Particulars Non-current Current 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(unsecured, considered good unless 
otherwise stated) 

        

Interest accrued but not due on deposit 
with bank 

- - 37.34 26.07 

Unamortised Loan Acquisition Cost 123.30 38.65 38.35 15.16 

Prepaid expenses - - 62.04 14.79 

Security deposits 33.82 - 36.00 33.32 

Gratuity Asset (Refer Note 25) - - - 4.10 

 Total 157.12 38.65 173.73 93.44 

16. Revenue from operations 

  Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Interest income 2,653.82 1,541.39 

Processing fees and other charges 667.26 195.16 

Total  3,321.08 1,736.55 

17. Other Income 

 Particulars  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Interest on fixed deposits with bank 321.62 288.33 

Dividend income from mutual funds 0.46 5.37 

Other income 0.00 2.74 

Total  322.08 296.44 

18. Employee benefit expenses 

 Particulars  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Salaries and wages 1,500.90 781.84 

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 25) 100.52 52.75 

Employee stock option expense (Refer Note 26) 23.53 10.52 

Staff welfare expenses 10.54 6.36 

Total  1,635.49 851.47 

19. Finance costs 

  Particulars  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Interest expense on borrowings - Term loans 697.91 297.69 

Other borrowing costs 22.44 9.75 

Total  720.35 307.44 
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20. Other expenses 

  Particulars  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Power and fuel 5.58 2.93 

Rent (Refer note 30) 110.36 55.10 

Legal and professional fees 246.72 60.03 

Travelling and conveyance expenses 45.75 12.38 

IT support services  71.66 44.57 

Payment to auditors (Refer note 28) 16.74 20.05 

Courier, internet and other communication expenses 18.73 7.44 

Printing and stationery 10.55 3.47 

Office expenses 9.52 3.81 

Housekeeping Charges 5.63 4.10 

Bank charges and commission 6.13 2.39 

Rates and taxes 0.68 0.65 

Brokerage and commission 2.50 0.86 

Repairs and maintenance 1.05 0.63 

Insurance 0.79 0.92 

Loss on sale of fixed assets / write off 3.01 1.11 

Miscellaneous expenses 8.99 5.31 

Total  564.39 225.76 

 

21. Provisions (Refer Note 29 and 33.21) 

  Particulars  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Provision for standard assets  62.80 11.89 

Provision for NPAs 44.58 31.61 

Provision for assets restructured under COVID-19 Resolution Plan 45.02 35.95 

Provision for other contingency on standard assets  (74.59) 191.18 

Total  77.81 270.63 
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22. Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force 

from October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium 

enterprises. The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the MSMED Act as at March 31, 2022. The 

disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under: 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the 
end of the year: 

    

Principal - 0.44 

Interest - - 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act, 2006: - - 

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers 
beyond the appointed day: 

- - 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding interest specified under MSMED 
Act, 2006 

- - 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
year 

- - 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23. 

- - 

23. Segment Reporting 

The Company is primarily engaged into business of providing loans for purchase or construction of residential 

houses. Further, the Company does not have any separate geographic segments other than India. As such 

there are no separate reportable segment as per AS 17 “Segment Reporting”. 

24. Disclosures as required by the AS 18, Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Names of related parties and description of relationship: 

  Name of Related Party Nature of relationship 

Mr. Vikrant Bhagwat, MD and CEO Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Mr. Sanjay Tiwari, CFO Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Ms. Avanti Gulavani, Company Secretary until March 11, 2022 Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Ms. Vrishti Kaushik, Company Secretary wef March 11, 2022 Key Management Personnel (KMP)  

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar Independent Director 

Mr. Ashish Tewari Non-executive Promoter Director 

Ms. Sushma Kaushik Nominee Director 

Mr. Avishek Addy wef November 18, 2021 Additional Director 

Mr. Himanshu Joshi wef December 15, 2021 Independent Director 

Mr. Ghanasham Kulkarni (until September 14, 2021) Independent Director 

Mr. Ganesh Rao (until December 15, 2021) Non-executive Promoter Director 

Mr. Subit Saurav Nominee Director 

Mr. P. Surendra Pai & Mrs. Savita S Pai Significant influence over the company  

Aavishkaar Bharat Fund Significant influence over the company  

Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP Significant influence over the company  
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24. Disclosures as required by the AS 18, Related Party Disclosures (cont.) 

 

(b) Details of related party transactions for the year 

Transactions Name of related party March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Remuneration- KMP (See note below) Vikrant Bhagwat 92.40 54.82 

Sanjay Tiwari 58.45 31.45 

 Avanti Gulavani 8.78 8.22 

 Vrishti Kaushik 0.53 - 

Employee shared based compensation Sanjay Tiwari 1.58 7.78 

Sitting Fees – Independent Directors  Matangi Gowrishankar 3.20 1.60 

 Ghanasham Kulkarni 0.50 0.90 

 Himanshu Joshi 0.60 - 

Commission – Independent Directors Himanshu Joshi 2.00 - 

1) There are no amounts written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from related party. 

2) Remuneration excludes provision for employee benefits as separate actuarial valuation for KMP is not 

available. 

3) Vikrant Bhagwat, the MD and CEO has given personal guarantee provided for borrowings taken by the 

Company as at year end. 

4) The Company has not granted any loans or advances to related parties during the year. 

25. Employee benefits: post-employment benefit plans 

Defined contribution plans: The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of 

employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The 

contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as an 

expense towards contribution to Provident Fund for the year aggregated to ₹76.1 lakhs (Previous year: ₹42.5 

lakhs). 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for qualifying employees. The plan provides for a lump sum 

payment to employees, at retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment of an amount 

equivalent to 15 days salary for every completed year of service or a part there of in excess of six months up 

to maximum of ₹20 Lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of continuous service. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 21.01 13.72 
Current service cost 25.85 18.93 
Interest cost 1.18 0.80 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (11.35) (12.44) 
Benefits paid - - 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 36.69 21.01 
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25. Employee benefits: post-employment benefit plans (Cont.) 

Fair value of plan assets 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Changes in fair value of plan assets   

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 25.10 10.93 

Expected return on plan assets 1.82 1.21 

Contributions - 11.61 

Benefits paid - - 

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on plan assets (0.24) 1.35 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 26.68 25.10 

Actual return on plan assets 1.58 2.56 

Actuarial loss recognized   

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss for the period - Obligations (11.35) (12.44) 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss for the period - Plan assets 0.24 (1.35) 

Total Loss for the period (11.10) (13.79) 

Actuarial Loss recognized in the period (11.10) (13.79) 

Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain) /Loss in the period - - 

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Current service cost 25.85 18.93 

Interest cost on benefit obligation 1.18 0.80 

Expected return on plan assets (1.82) (1.21) 

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized (11.10) (13.79) 

Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss 14.11 4.72 

Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Present value of obligation at the end of period 36.69 21.01 

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period 26.68 25.10 

Surplus / (Deficit) (10.01) 4.09 

Current asset 10.01 (4.09) 

Non-current liability - - 

Unrecognised past service costs - - 

Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance sheet (10.01) 4.09 

Reconciliation of net asset/(liability) recognized 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Net asset /(liability) recognized at the beginning of the period 4.10 (2.79) 

Company contributions - 11.61 

Expense recognized at the end of period (14.11) (4.72) 

Mortality charges and taxes - - 

Net asset / (liability) recognized at the end of the period (10.01) 4.10 
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25. Employee benefits: post-employment benefit plans (Cont.) 

Experience adjustment history for 5 years 

 Particulars 
March 31, 

2022 
March 31, 

2021 
March 31, 

2019 
March 31, 

2018 
March 31, 

2017 

Present value of obligation 36.69 21.01 13.72 5.91 1.51 
Plan assets 26.68 25.10 10.93 2.65 - 
(Deficit) / Surplus (10.01) 4.09 (2.79) (3.26) (1.51) 
Experience (Gain) or Loss on plan liabilities 10.51 (12.63) 0.98 2.57 1.27 
Experience (Gain) or Loss on plan assets 0.00 (1.44) 0.14 (0.10) - 

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation 

 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Discount rate 6.10% 5.60% 

Attrition rate 25.00% 25.00% 

Salary escalation 8.00% 8.00% 

The discount rate is based on prevailing yields of Indian Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date 

for the estimated term of the obligation.  Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates of future salary increase take 

into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

26. Stock Option Plans 

The Company has one stock option scheme. The Altum Credo Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP 2017”) 

was approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company on November 02, 2017. The ESOP 

plan will be administered by the Board of the Company. Each option carries with it the right to purchase one 

equity share of the Company. The Board can grant up to a maximum 13,25,000 options, not exceeding 2,65,000 

options per employee per annum. All options shall be granted at exercise price as per scheme or as approved 

by the board. 

i) ESOP 2017 Grant I: 2,50,000 options representing 2,50,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted under this 

scheme on November 02, 2017.  

ii) ESOP 2017 Grant II: 3,11,000 options representing 3,11,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted under 

this scheme on June 13, 2018. 

iii) ESOP 2017 Grant III - A: 3,11,000 options representing 3,11,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted 

under this scheme on July 01, 2019. 

iv) ESOP 2017 Grant III - B: 50,000 options representing 50,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted under 

this scheme on July 01, 2019. 

v) ESOP 2017 Grant IV: 1,40,000 options representing 1,40,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted under 

this scheme on October 01, 2020. 

vi) ESOP 2017 Grant V: 3,80,000 options representing 3,80,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were granted under 

this scheme on July 01, 2021. 
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26. Stock Options Plans (Cont.) 

Number of options granted, exercised and cancelled/lapsed 

  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

 ESOP 2017   

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,51,500 5,64,000 
Granted during the year 3,80,000 1,40,000 

Exercised during the year 50,750 63,750 

Lapsed during the year 1,05,000 1,88,750 

Option outstanding, end of the year 6,75,750 4,51,500 
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,68,833 1,37,917 

Unvested options 5,06,917 3,13,583 

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant based on the following assumptions: 

 Particulars Range 

1. Risk free interest rate (%) 4.8% - 7.9% 

2. Expected life  3.9 - 4.5 

3. Expected volatility (%) 36.01% - 54.18% 

4. Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 

The compensation cost of stock options granted to employees has been accounted by the Company using the 

intrinsic value method. Had the compensation cost been determined as per fair value approach (calculated 

using Black Scholes Options Pricing Model), the Company's Profit after Tax would be lower ₹29.84 lakhs 

(Previous Year: Profit after Tax lower by ₹6.40) and profit per share as reported would be lower as indicated 

below: 

 Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Profit after tax 446.66 322.96 

Add: Stock based compensation expense under intrinsic value-
based method 

23.53 10.52 

Less: Stock based compensation expense under fair value-based 
method 

(53.38) (16.92) 

Adjusted profit after tax 416.71 316.56 

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.)   

 - As reported 1.06 0.79 

 - Adjusted 0.99 0.77 
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)   

 - As reported 0.69 0.58 

 - Adjusted 0.64 0.57 

Face value per share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
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27. Basic and Diluted earnings per share (EPS) 

Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders 446.66 322.96 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 4,21,26,613 4,10,35,970 

Basic profit/(loss) per share (in Rs.) 1.06 0.79 

Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders 446.66 322.46 

Add: Dividend on CCPS 0.02 0.01 

Adjusted net profit/(loss) for diluted EPS 446.68 322.47 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 4,21,26,613 4,10,35,970 

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares   

Add: Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares  2,21,89,755 1,40,84,407 

Add: Employee stock options 3,01,523 3,31,259 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 6,46,17,891 5,54,51,636 

Diluted profit/(loss) per share (in Rs.) 0.69 0.58 

Face value per share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00 

28. Payment to Auditors 

 Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

 Payments to the Statutory Auditors comprise (Excluding GST 
expense)   

For Statutory audit 12.50 12.00 
For Tax Audit 1.00 1.00 
For Certification work 1.60 4.85 
For Out-of-pocket expenses 0.30 0.54 

Total 15.40 18.39 

29. Provision for contingency and losses on loans given to customers 

  Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Opening balance 377.43 106.80 

Provided during the year     

Standard Assets  62.80 11.89 

NPA Assets 44.58 31.61 

Standard Assets restructured under COVID-19 Resolution Plan 45.02 35.95 

Other contingencies (74.59) 191.18 

Closing balance 455.24 377.43 

The Company has made provision for the Standard Assets, in accordance with Master Direction – Non-

Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 

2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI).  These norms require the Company to maintain provision of 0.25% 

on standard home loan assets across income segments. Considering the low-income group and economically 

weaker section of customers base of the Company; from the current financial year, has provided additional 

0.15% (aggregate of 0.4%) on the standard home loans assets. 
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30. Operating Leases 

The Company has taken office premises under operating leases. These lease arrangements are ranging 

between 11 to 60 months. The future lease payments w.r.t. non-cancellable operating lease are as follows: 

  Particulars 
Year ended   

March 31, 2022 
Year ended   

March 31, 2021 

Not later than 1 year 86.31 31.16 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 331.64 - 

Later than 5 years - - 

Lease rental charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss is ₹1,10,47,095 (as on March 31, 2021: ₹55,10,431) 

31. Contingent liabilities and commitments 

  Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

a. Contingent liabilities* 6.05 6.05 

b. Commitments:     

(i) Commitments not provided for:    

• Estimated amount on account of contracts to be executed 
and not provided for (net of advance) 

19.32 39.00 

(ii) Commitments not provided for:    

•  Commitments related to loans sanction but undrawn 506.31 527.91 

•  Commitments related to loans sanction but partially 
undrawn 

4,827.03 1,360.12 

Total 5,358.71 1,933.08 

During the FY 2020-21, the Company had received an intimation under section 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961, for the Assessment year 2019-20 (pertaining to the financial year 2018-19) wherein the Assessing Officer 

has disallowed Rs. 24.03 lakhs being an advance paid to the vendor for the development of a software which 

was written off and claimed as revenue expenditure. The Company has filed an appeal against the 

disallowance made by the assessing officer with the Commissioner of Income Tax - Appeals (‘CIT’). Based on 

professional advice, the Company strongly believes that the case will be decided in favour of the Company, 

and hence no provision has been considered. 

32. Additional regulatory information under Clause Y, Division I of Schedule III 

32.1. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:  

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, other than the transactions undertaken in the normal 

course of business and in accordance with extant regulatory guidelines as applicable. 

(i) No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(ii) No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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32. Additional regulatory information under Clause Y, Division I of Schedule III (Cont.) 

32.2. Key financial ratios 

The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows: 

 Particulars Numerator Denominator 
As at March 31,  Varianc

e % 2022 2021 

Current Ratio (Note 1) Current Assets Current liabilities 3.53 4.85 27.28 

Debt-Equity Ratio (Note 1) Borrowings Shareholder's Equity 0.49 0.34 (44.30) 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio  
(Note 1) 

EBITDA^ Debt service 
0.48 0.83 42.17 

Return on Equity Ratio PAT Shareholder's Equity 2.48% 2.44% (1.68) 

Inventory Turnover Ratio Not applicable Not applicable - - - 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Not applicable Not applicable - - - 

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 
(Note 2) 

Operating expenses Average Trade 
Payables 

25.20 10.98 (129.56) 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (Note 2) Total Revenue Working Capital 0.47 0.33 (40.85) 

Net Profit Ratio PAT Net Operating 
income 

17.17% 22.60% 24.00 

Return on Capital Employed EBIT Shareholder's Equity 5.87% 4.84% (21.44) 

Return on Investment (assets) PAT Total Average Loan 
Assets 

2.38% 2.61% 8.63 

^Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization 

*Debt service represents total finance cost and debt repayments for the year 

 

Notes:       

1. The Company has borrowed funds from NHB and other bankers to the tune of Rs. 89 Crores during 

the year ended March 31, 2022 which is 3 times of borrowings of previous year (FY 2020-21 ₹29 crores). 

Increase in borrowings has led to an increase in the debt ratios such as Current Ratio, Debt-Equity 

Ratio and Debt Service Coverage Ratio.   

2. The Company has completed fund infusion of ₹88 crores (₹69 crores as Series B – CCPS and balance ₹19 

crores as Equity Share Capital) in November 2021 which along with debt raised has affected the Net 

Capital Turnover Ratio. The revenue has increase due to higher disbursements of loans and advances 

during the year ended March 31, 2022. Increase in disbursements of loans and advances and 

borrowings has led to corresponding increase in other expenses and trade payables affecting the Trade 

Payable Turnover Ratio.   

32.3. The Company has not entered into any Scheme of arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, accordingly this disclosure is not applicable.  

32.4. The Company does not have any undisclosed income during the year.     

32.5. The Company is not covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly 

disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility have not been made.  

32.6. The Company is a standalone entity; not part of any Group. Compliance with number of layers of 

companies is not applicable. 
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33. Disclosure as required by Reserve Bank of India 

The following disclosures have been given in terms of Master Directions for Housing Finance Companies 

RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC. No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 

February 17, 2021. Further other related circulars issued in this regard by RBI/NHB from time to time have 

been compiled by the Management in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended. 

33.1. Capital 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

a)  CRAR (%) 139.04% 190.86% 
b)  CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 137.79% 189.61% 
c)   CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 1.25% 1.25% 

• d)  Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital   -   -  

e)  Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments  -   -  

 

33.2. Reserve Fund under Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A. Balance at the beginning of the year   
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 31.04 31.04 
b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of 
the NHB Act, 1987. 

64.59 - 

 Total 95.63 31.04 

B. Addition/Appropriation/Withdrawal during the year   
Add:  - - 

(a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987   
(b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 

1961 taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve 
u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987. 

89.33 64.59 

Less:  - - 
(a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of 

the NHB Act, 1987 
  

(b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) 
of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been 
taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of 
the NHB Act, 1987. 

- - 

C. Balance at the end of the year   
(a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 31.04 31.04 
(b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 

1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve 
u/s 29C of the NHB Act 

153.92 64.59 

• Total 184.87 95.63 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to Master Directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-

21dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.3. Investments 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Value of Investments   
(i)   Gross Value of Investment 5.66 34.52 

(a) a. In India - - 
(b) b. Outside India - - 

(ii)  Provision for Depreciation   
(a) a. In India - - 
(b) b. Outside India - - 

(iii) Net Value of Investments   
(a) a. In India 5.66 34.52 
(b) b. Outside India - - 

Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on Investments   
(i)   Opening Balance - - 
(ii)  Add: Provisions made During the Year - - 

(iii) Less: Write-off/Write Back of Excess provisions during the year - - 

• (iv) Closing Balance - - 

33.4. Derivatives 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)   

i) The notional principal of swap agreements - - 

ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil 
their obligations under the agreements 

- - 

iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps - - 

iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - - 

v) The fair value of the swap book - - 

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative - - 

i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives 
undertaken during the year (instrument-wise) 

  

ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives 
outstanding as on (instrument-wise) - - 

iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives 
outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

- - 

iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives 
outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

- - 

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives 
  

 Qualitative disclosures: Nil   

 Quantitative Disclosure   

 March 31, 2022 

 
Currency 

Derivatives 
Interest rate 
derivatives 

i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) - - 

ii) Marked to Market Positions  - - 

(a) Assets (+) - - 

(b) Liability (-) - - 

iii) Credit Exposure  - - 

iv) Unhedged Exposures - - 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-

21 dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.5. Securitisation 

(A) Securitisation transactions entered into by the HFC and outstanding as of March 31, 2022 

  No./Amount 

1) No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions - 

2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored - 

3) Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of 
balance sheet 

- 

(i) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements - 

(ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements 
 

- 

 4)    Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR - 

(i) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements - 

a) Exposure to own securitizations - 

b) Exposure to third party securitisations - 

(ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements - 

a) Exposure to own securitisations - 

b) Exposure to third party securitisations - 

 

(B) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

i) No. of accounts   

ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / 
RC 

- - 

iii) Aggregate consideration - - 

iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts 
transferred in earlier years 

- - 

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value - - 

(C) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

i) No. of accounts   

ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned - - 

iii) Aggregate consideration - - 

iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts 
transferred in earlier years 

- - 

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value - - 

d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: - - 

i) No. of accounts purchased during the year - - 

ii) Aggregate outstanding - - 

iii) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year - - 

iv) Aggregate outstanding - - 

B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold: - - 

i) No. of accounts sold - - 

ii) Aggregate outstanding - - 

iii) Aggregate consideration received - - 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master circular RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.6. Asset Liability Management 

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2022: 

Particulars 
1 day to 7 

days 
8 day to 
14 days 

15 days to 
30/31 days 

Over 1 & 
upto 2 

months 

Over 2 & 
upto 3 

months 

Over 3 & 
upto 6 

months 

Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

Over 3 year 
& upto 5 

years 
Over 5 year Total 

Liabilities   
        

 
Deposits - - - - - - - - - - - 

Borrowing from 
Banks/Financial 
institutions 

21.67 - 116.69 151.25 388.71 612.72 1,231.04 4,751.61 2,704.35 1,172.33 11,150.33 

Market borrowing - - - - - - - - - - - 

Foreign currency 
liabilities 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

Assets            

Advances 6.19 99.06 18.57 128.71 131.70 415.39 891.68 3,939.07 4,530.20 14,857.33 25,017.90 

Investments 5.66 - - - - - - - - - 5.66 

Foreign currency 
assets 

 - - - - - - - - - - 

Notes:- 

1. Maturity pattern for advances includes prepayments based on management estimates and past historical trends 

2. NPA assets are shown net of provision 

3. Maturity pattern for initial 3 buckets <30 days is based on collection trends observed in past and demand presentation cycle of the Company 

4. Borrowings excludes interest accrued but not due 

5. In case of Housing loans, where the loan is not completely disbursed and it is in Pre-EMI stage, the Company has estimated the EMI commencement date based on the 

internal assessment and other information available as on date. Accordingly, the maturity pattern for such loans has been considered based on the estimated EMI 

commencement dates.  
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master circular RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.6  Asset Liability Management (continued) 

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2021: 

Particulars 
1 day to 7 

days 
8 day to 
14 days 

15 days to 
30/31 days 

Over 1 & 
upto 2 

months 

Over 2 & 
upto 3 

months 

Over 3 & 
upto 6 

months 

Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

Over 3 year 
& upto 5 

years 
Over 5 year Total 

Liabilities   
        

 
Deposits - - - - - - - - - - - 

Borrowing from 
Banks/Financial 
institutions* 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

Market borrowing 23.75 - 55.43 81.71 69.08 258.26 521.69 2,152.27 1,288.65 133.96 4,584.80 

Foreign currency 
liabilities 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

Assets - - - - - - - - - - - 

Advances - 64.13 7.13 72.70 73.83 230.62 492.53 2,218.32 2,457.16 6,736.47 12,352.89 

Investments 34.52 - - - - - - - - - 34.52 

Foreign currency 
assets 

 - - - - - - - - - - 

Notes:- 

1. Maturity pattern for advances includes prepayments based on management estimates and past historical trends 

2. NPA assets are shown net of provision 

3. Maturity pattern for initial 3 buckets <30 days is based on collection trends observed in past and demand presentation cycle of the Company 

4. Borrowings excludes interest accrued but not due 

5. In case of Housing loans, where the loan is not completely disbursed and it is in Pre-EMI stage, the Company has estimated the EMI commencement date based on the 

internal assessment and other information available as on date. Accordingly, the maturity pattern for such loans has been considered based on the estimated EMI 

commencement dates. 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.7. Exposure 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1. Exposure to Real Estate Sector   

a) Direct Exposure    

(i) Residential mortgages:   
Lending fully secured mortgages on residential property that is or 
will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;   

- Upto 15 Lakhs 22,663.30 11,535.58 

-  More than 15 Lakhs 2,430.79 848.92 

• Total 25,094.09 12,384.50 

(ii)  Commercial real estate   
Lending secured mortgage on commercial real estates (Exposure would 
also include non-fund based (NFB) limit) - - 
(iii) Investment in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other 
securitized exposure:   

- Residential - - 

- Commercial Real Estate - - 

b) Indirect Exposure   
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing bank 
(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) - - 

2. Exposure to Capital Market   

(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is 
not exclusively invested in corporate debt; - - 

(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on 
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), 
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented 
mutual funds; - - 

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security; - - 

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral 
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares 
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual 
funds 'does not fully cover the advances; - - 

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on 
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; - - 

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / 
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising 
resources; - - 

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - - 
(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and 
unregistered) - - 

Total Exposure to Capital Market - - 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.8. Details of financing of parent company products 

These details are not applicable since the Company is not a subsidiary of any company. 

33.9. Details of Single borrower limit/ Group borrower limit exceeded by the HFC: 

The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the 

financial year. 

33.10. Unsecured advances - Nil 

33.11. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business 

  Amount 
% of Net Owned 

Funds 

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business - - 

(ii) Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business - - 

33.12. Registrations obtained from other financial sector regulators 

The Company has not obtained registration from any other financial sector regulator. 

33.13. Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

No. of penalties levied by NHB Nil 1 
Amount of penalty levied Not Applicable 0.05 

33.14. Related party transactions 

As per the Company’s policy on Related Party Transactions, all such transactions with related parties are at an 

arm’s length basis and that such credits are clearly identifiable, effectively monitored and appropriate steps are 

taken to control the quantitative limits or mitigate risks. All transactions with related parties are subject to the 

approval of the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee including the limits, terms 

and conditions, if any, imposed thereon. Refer Note 24 for additional details on related party transactions. 

33.15. Group Structure 

The Company is a standalone entity; not part of any Group. 

33.16. Ratings assigned by Credit Rating agencies 

The Company had its instruments rated as under: 

Rating Agency Rating Nature of Instrument Financial Year 

CARE Ratings CARE BBB –; Positive Long Term Loan (Borrowings)  2021-22 

33.17. Remuneration of Non-executive Directors (Refer Note no. 24) 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar – Sitting Fees 3.20 1.60 

Mr. Himanshu Joshi - Sitting Fees 0.60 0.00 

Mr. Ghanasham Kulkarni – Sitting Fees 0.50 0.90 
Mr. Himanshu Joshi - Commission 2.00 0.00 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.18. Prior period expenses and changes in accounting policies 

During the year, (a) no prior period items occurred which has impact on Statement of Profit and loss, and (b) 

no change in accounting policy. 

33.19. Revenue recognition 

Other than pending bounce and other charges and penal interest which are recognized on receipt basis, there 

are no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed by the Company pending the resolution 

of significant uncertainties. 

33.20. Accounting Standard 21 – Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) 

The Company does not have any parent company or subsidiary, hence provisions of AS 21 not applicable to the 

Company. 

33.21. Provisions and contingencies 

1. Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure in Profit & Loss account 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(a) Provisions for depreciation on investment - - 

(b) Provision made towards income tax 149.95 93.93 

(c) Provision for standard assets 62.80 11.89 

(d) Provision for assets restructured under COVID-19 Resolution Plan 45.02 35.95 

(e) Provision towards NPA 44.58 31.61 

(f) Other contingency provision for standard assets (74.59) 191.18 

(g) Others   

Gratuity 14.11 4.72 
Compensated absences 5.14 0.54 

 

2. Break up of Loans & Advances and Provisions thereon 

 Housing Non-Housing 

 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Standard assets     
a) Total outstanding amount 17,724.29 9,666.95 7,202.67 2,628.13 

b) Provisions made 284.75 269.77 94.30 76.05 

Sub-standard assets    - 
a) Total outstanding amount 35.45 64.96 23.41 3.05 

b) Provisions made 5.32 9.74 3.51 0.46 

Doubtful assets-Category I (upto 1 year)     
a) Total outstanding amount 61.36 - 2.53 - 
b) Provisions made 22.34 - 0.63 - 
Doubtful assets-Category II (1-3 years)     
a) Total outstanding amount - - - - 
b) Provisions made - - - - 
Doubtful assets-Category III (More than 3 
years)     
a) Total outstanding amount - - - - 
b) Provisions made - - - - 
Loss assets     
a) Total outstanding amount 43.21 20.83 1.18 0.58 

b) Provisions made 43.21 20.83 1.18 0.58 

Total     

a) Total outstanding amount 17,864.31 9,752.74 7,229.79 2,631.76 

b) Provisions made 355.62 300.34 99.62 77.09 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.22. Drawdown from Reserves 

During the year, no draw down from reserves was done. 

33.23. Concentration of Public deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPA's 

1. Concentration of Public Deposits -  

Not applicable, since the Company is a Non-deposit taking HFC. 

2. Concentration of Loans and advances 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Total loan and advances to twenty largest borrowers 514.07 425.32 

Percentage of Loans and advances to twenty largest borrowers to 
total advances of the Company 

2.05% 3.43% 

3. Concentration of all Exposure (including off balance sheet exposure) 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers 545.83 486.84 

Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers to total 
exposure of the Company on borrowers 

1.79% 3.41% 

4. Concentration of NPA's 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 134.84 89.42 
Percentage of exposure to top 10 NPA accounts to total exposure of 
the Company on borrowers 

0.54% 0.72% 

 

5. Sector-wise NPAs 

 
Percentage of NPAs to Total 

Advances in that sector 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

a. Housing Loans:   

Individuals 0.78% 0.88% 

Builder/ Project Loans - - 
Corporates - - 
Others (specify) - - 

b. Non-Housing Loans:   

Individuals 0.38% 0.14% 

Builder/ Project Loans - - 

Corporates - - 

Others (specify) - - 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.24. Movement of NPA's 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(i) Net NPA's to Net Advances (%) 0.36% 0.47% 

(ii) Movement of NPA's (Gross) - - 

a) Opening balance 89.42 - 

b) Additions during the year 82.69 89.42 

c) Reductions during the year 4.98 - 

d) Closing balance 167.13 89.42 

(iii) Movement of Net NPA's - - 

a) Opening balance 57.81 - 

b) Additions during the year 37.36 57.81 

c) Reductions during the year 4.23 - 

d) Closing balance 90.94 57.81 
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPA's (excluding provisions on 

standard assets) - - 

a) Opening balance 31.61 - 

b) Provisions made during the year 45.33 31.61 

c) Write off/Write back of excess provisions 0.75 - 

d) Closing balance 76.19 31.61 

33.25. Overseas Assets: The Company does not have any Overseas Assets. 

33.26. Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms): 

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) which requires to be 

consolidated as per Accounting Standards. 

33.27. Disclosure of Complaints 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - - 

No. of complaints received during the year 25 1 

No. of complaints redressed during the year 25 1 

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - - 

33.28. Percentage of outstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery: Nil 

33.29. Satisfaction of principal business criteria for HFC 

The Company is in compliance with and has satisfied the principal business criteria as of Mar 31, 2021 for 

classification as a "Housing Finance Company" in accordance with RBI directions.   

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

% of Financial Assets in Housing Finance / Total Assets (net off 
intangible assets) 

52.28% 52.23% 

% of Assets in Housing Finance to Individuals / Total Assets (net 
off intangible assets) 

52.28% 52.23% 

33.30. Area of Operations, joint venture partners and overseas assets 

The Company currently operates in six states of Maharashtra, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, 

Telangana and Rajasthan. The Company does not have any joint venture partners with regards to joint ventures 

and overseas subsidiaries. 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.31. Schedule to Balance Sheet as Annexure III as per above Master Directions for the year ending March 

31, 2022 

Liabilities  

1) Loans and advances: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Term loans 11,150.38 4,584.81 

 - Amount outstanding - - 

 - Amount overdue   

Assets 

2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

a) Secured 25,094.09 12,384.50 

b) Unsecured - - 

 

3) Break-up of Investments March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Unquoted - Units of mutual funds 5.66 34.52 

 

4) Borrower group-wise classification 
of assets financed as in (2) above 

Amount net of provisions 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total 

1. Related Parties       

(a) Subsidiaries  - - - - - - 

(b) Companies in the same group  - - - - - - 

(c) Other related parties  - - - - - - 

2. Other than related parties 25,094.09 - 25,094.09 12,384.50 - 12,384.50 

Total 25,094.09 - 25,094.09 12,384.50 - 12,384.50 

 

5) Investor group-wise classification 
of all investments (current and 
long term) in shares and securities 
(both quoted and unquoted) 

Market Value / Break up or 

fair value or NAV 
Book Value (Net of Provisions) 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1. Related Parties     

(a) Subsidiaries  - - - - 

(b) Companies in the same 
group  

- - - - 

(c) Other related parties  - - - - 

2. Other than related parties 5.66 5.66 34.52 34.52 

Total 5.66 5.66 34.52 34.52 
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33. Disclosure pursuant to master directions no. RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBI (continued) 

33.32. Schedule to Balance Sheet as Annexure III as per above Master Directions for the year ending March 

31, 2022 (continued) 

 

6) Other Information March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1. Gross Non-Performing Assets    

(a) Related parties  - - 

(b) Other than related parties  167.13 89.42 

2. Net Non-Performing Assets    

(a) Related parties  - - 

(b) Other than related parties  90.94 57.81 

2. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - - 

 

34. Disclosure Pursuant to Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2016 issued by RBI 

The Company has reported the below frauds to NHB/RBI reported during the period ended 31 March 2022 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

No. of frauds reported to NHB 1 1 
Amount involved in the fraud 23.62 18.50 

 

35. Disclosure Pursuant to Circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 issued by RBI COVID-19 

Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(i) Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the 
moratorium/deferment was extended 

- 100.72 

(ii) Respective amount where asset classification benefit is extended - 100.72 
(iii) Provisions made during the Q1FY2021  - 10.07 
(iv) Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods 
against slippages and the residual provisions  

- 10.07 
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36. Note of Restructuring of Assets due to COVID-19 

The economic fallout on account of the COVID-19 pandemic has led to significant financial stress for borrowers 

across the board. To address the financial stress caused by pandemic event, Reserve Bank of India on August 6, 

2020 and May 5, 2021 issued Resolution Plan Frameworks for COVID-19-related Stress to provide a window 

under the Prudential Framework to enable the lenders to implement a resolution plan in respect of eligible 

borrowers.  

The Company duly implemented as one time measure to offer the facility of restructuring to its eligible 

customers identified basis Company’s internal assessment in compliance with RBI circular guidelines on 

resolution plan with key consideration being significant loss of income /employment and recovery road map 

assessment based on the customer profile. The details of the loan accounts restructured under the Resolution 

Plan as of March 31, 2022 is as below: 

Type of borrower 

Exposure to 
accounts classified 

as Standard 
consequent to 

implementation of 
RP – As on 

September 30, 2021 

Aggregate debt 
that slipped 

into NPA 
during the half 

year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Amount 
written off 
during the 
half year 

ended March 
31, 2022 

Amount paid 
by the 

borrower 
during the 
half year 

ended March 
31, 2022 

Exposure to 
accounts 

classified as 
Standard 

consequent to 
implementation 

of resolution plan 
- Position as at 
March 31, 2022 

Housing / Non-
Housing loans 
(Personal Loans) * 

841.60 Nil Nil 68.21 809.72 

*Housing loans to individuals are classified under Personal loans as per RBI’s circular on ‘XBRL Returns – 

Harmonization of Banking Statistics’ issued on Jan 04, 2018. Resolution Plan (RP) has been implemented for 

Total 115 cases under RP 1.0 & RP 2.0. 

Details of loans restructured under RP 2.0 as required under RBI’s circular dated May 5, 2021 as per Resolution 

Framework – 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses 

Particulars 

Individual Borrowers 
Small 

businesses Personal 
Loans 

Business 
Loans 

A. Number of requests received for invoking the 
resolution process 

75 - - 

B. Number of accounts where resolution has been 
implemented under this window 

72 - - 

C. Exposure to accounts mentioned at B before 
implementation of the plan 

452.04 - - 

D. Of (C), aggregate amount of debt that was 
converted into other securities  

- - - 

E. Additional funding sanctioned, if any, including 
between invocation of the plan and implementation 

- - - 

F. Increase in provisions on account of the 
implementation of the resolution plan 

45.02 - - 
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37. The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with 

current year’s classification/disclosure. 
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